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DEA S ON AND CRDER
n Septenber 15, 1980, Admnistrative Law Gficer (ALO Robert

LeProhn issued the attached Decision in this proceedi ng. Thereafter, the
General (ounsel and the Wnhited FarmWrkers of Anerica, AFL-A O (URW, each
tinmely filed exceptions and a supporting brief. Respondent also filed
exceptions and a brief, but not in a tinely fashion. Respondent, General
Gounsel , and the UFWall tinely filed reply briefs.

The Agricultural Labor Relations Board (ALRB or Board)? has
considered the record and the attached Decision in light of the tinely
exceptions and supporting briefs and has decided to affirmthe ALOs
rulings, findings, and conclusions as nodified herein, and to adopt his
recormended order di smssing the consolidated conplaint. Because of the
i nportance of the issue to which Respondent has excepted, and due to a

recent U S Suprene

1/ Menber MCarthy took no part in the decision in this case.



Gourt decision bearing on that issue, the Board has decided to
reviewthe entire record and Decision in light of all rel evant
nateri al .

Procedur al Background

h August 8, 1978, the UFWfiled a charge in Case No. 78-CE 113-M
al l eging that Respondent viol ated Labor Code section 1153(e) and (a) (all
citations herein wll be to the Labor Code unl ess ot herw se specified), by
engagi ng in bad-faith bargai ning, and section 1153 (c) and (a) by nechani zi ng
its fresh narket tomato harvest as a neans of discrimnating against its
enpl oyees for their union activity. Based on those charges, which were tw ce
anended thereafter, the General (ounsel, on August 24, 1978, issued a
conplaint. n August 31, 1979, the General Gounsel issued anot her conpl ai nt
(Case No. 79-CE330-SAL) alleging that Respondent violated section 1153 (c)
and (a) by discrimnating agai nst forner enpl oyees by failing to rehire them
because of their union activity. O Septenber 4, 1979, the conplaints were
consol i dated for heari ng.

Fact ual Backgr ound

Respondent is a Texas corporation engaged in the harvesting and
packagi ng of fresh narket tomatoes. Respondent grows no tomatoes, but did
sel ect seed and harvest the crop for sone of its custoners. |In the Salinas
Val | ey, Respondent purchases tonatoes fromvarious agricul tural enpl oyers,
i ncl udi ng Braga Ranch, Bruce Church, Borzini, Hiuntington Ranches, Pryor Farns,
Petit Ranch, Merrill Farns, and Charley's Farns. For nost of those growers

Respondent al so harvested the crop and sel ect ed
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the seed. Francis P. Murphy (Mirphy) acted as Respondent's cor porate
secretary and is 40%owner of the corporate stock. Mirphy was the prinary
representative of Respondent for its California operations.

Respondent' s operations in California are concentrated in the
nont hs of August to Novenber, during the harvest season for fresh narket
tomatoes. A though planting occurs fromFebruary to July, apparently few of
Respondent' s staff are required during these nonths.

I n a Board-conducted representation el ection on

Sept enber 30, 1975, the UFWreceived a majority of the votes and was certified
on March 17, 1977. Q P. Mirphy (March 17, 1977) 3 AARB No. 26 (QP.M 1).

During the 1976 harvest, Respondent altered its nethod of hire and began
hiring enpl oyees directly rather than using the enpl oyees engaged by a | abor
contractor. Respondent created a seniority list intended to give preference to
t hose workers who had conpl eted the prior season's harvest. However, the
practice was not uniformy applied and the Board concl uded that Respondent

viol ated section 1153 (c) and (a) of the Agricultural Labor Rel ations Act
(Act) in 1976 by refusing to hire famlies of workers who had been invol ved in

union activity. Q P. Mirphy (Sept. 19, 1978) 4 AARB No. 62 (QP. M 11)

The Board subsequent|y concl uded that Respondent
coomtted several violations of the Act during the 1977 harvest. Besi des our
finding that it followed discrimnatory hiring and di scharge practi ces,
Respondent was al so found in contenpt of a court injunction ordering it to

cease its discrimnation. V¢
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al so concl uded that Respondent viol ated the Act by causing the arrest of a

UFWrepresentative for trespass. Q P. Mirphy (Dec. 27, 1978) 4 ALRB Nb.

106 (QP.M 111). In that case we held that a | abor organi zation certified
as their collective bargaining representative nay take access to enpl oyees
at the worksite to communi cate wth enpl oyees about the progress of
negoti at i ons.

Mbst recently, we found that Respondent violated section 1153 (e)
and (a) by failing to bargain in good faith wth the UFWup to Cctober 13,
1977. Q P. Mrrphy (Cct. 26, 1979) 5 AARB No. 63 (QP.M I\). This prior

hi story serves as background for the instant natter. ASHNE Farns, |nc.
(Feb. 8, 1980) 6 ALRB No. 9, p. 3.

Bargai ning Hstory

The UFWnegotiated with Respondent in a three-part process, first
di scussing relatively standard, industry-w de non-economc articles of the
proposed contract wth Respondent, then submtting economc proposal s and
followng wth specific proposals tailored to Respondent. Parts one and two
of the UFWprocess forma naster contract nodel applicable to representative
enpl oyers. The UFWattenpted to obtai n Respondent’'s agreenent to bargain
article by article, agreeing to each article as consensus was reached.
However, Respondent prevailed on this issue and the parties reached only
tentative agreenent on each article, pending agreement on the contract as a
whol e. Pursuant to this bargai ning process, on August 19, 1977, the UFWsent

to Respondent its economc and | ocal issues proposal, including an article on
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mechani zation. ?

Respondent presented its counterproposal on August 24, 1977. This
docurent cont ai ned no specific proposal on nechani zati on except for a general
Managenent R ghts clause. ¥ During the period fromAugust to Gctober 1977,
the prinmary di scussi on on nmachi nery concerned a nachine call ed La Banda t hat
had previously been used by Q P. Mirrphy. O Septenber 2, 1977, Respondent
told the UFWthat La Banda was irrel evant, for Respondent intended to use no
nachines for the harvest of fresh narket tomatoes. In |ate Septenber 1977,
Charley Soll becane the chief negotiator for Respondent, appearing generally
at bargaining sessions wth Ms. Q P. Murphy until Qctober 1977 and
thereafter wth Francis P. Mirphy. The Uhion was prinarily represented by
Marion Steeg during the negotiations. Soll followed the negotiating
procedur e descri bed above, i.e., the parties woul d reach tentative agreenent
on each article and nove on. Soll testified that he woul d view the breach of
a tentative agreenent as an indication of bad-faith bargai ni ng.

In early Cctober 1977, Respondent orally proposed that if the UFW

coul d adopt the nechani zati on cl ause whi ch was cont ai ned

2/ The nechani zation article stated: "Aticle 41; Mchani zati on. The Gonpany
agrees not to utilize harvesters or to introduce any other type of nachi nery
or nechani cal devi ce which di spl aces workers unl ess there are negotiations and
agreenent wth the union."”

3/ This proposal stated in relevant part: "Mmnagenent R ghts. The conpany
retains all inherent rights of nmanagenent including but not limted to the
followng, unless they are limted by sone other provision of this Agreenent:
to decide the nature of equi pnent, nachi nery, nethods or processes, and to
change or discontinue existing equi pnent, nachinery or processes; ...."
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in a contract between the UFWand Meyer Tonatoes (the Meyer Contract)? for
three years, Respondent woul d accept the Uhion's nai nt enance- of - st andar ds
clause. This offer was rejected by the Union because it considered that a
period of three years was too long to be bound by the nechani zati on | anguage
of the Meyer (ontract. The Union testified that the reason it negotiated the
nechani zati on | anguage with Meyer was because it had expected t hat
nechani zati on of fresh nmarket tonatoes woul d not be economcally feasible
during the life of that contract.

I n Novenber 1977, Respondent nade a package offer to the Union:
Respondent woul d accept the entire Meyer Contract (wth local supplenents) in
consideration for the Lhion's withdrawal of all pending unfair-Iabor-practice

charges and the settlenment of Chavez v. Ftzsimmons, a |lawsuit chargi ng

antitrust violations engaged in by certain growers and the International
Brot herhood of Teansters. This offer was pendi ng when the parties resuned
negoti ations in 1978.

During late 1977, Mirphy, in furtherance of his continuing interest
I n mechani zati on, purchased all the nechanical -harvest-variety seed, Petoseed
#29074, that he could |l ocate. Mirphy had coormssioned a test plot of a few

acres of this variety

4/ The Meyer Contract provided, in relevant part: "Atticle 15

Mechani zation. In the event the GConpany anti ci pates nechani zation of any
operation of the Conpany that will pernanently displ ace workers, the Gonpany
bef ore commenci ng such nechani cal operations shall meet with the Lhion to

di scuss training of displaced workers to operate and nai ntain the new
mechani cal equi pnent, the placenent of displaced workers in other jobs wth
the GConpany, or placing of such workers on a preferential hiring |1st which
the Gonpany and the Lhion wll use in conjunction wth Article 3, Hring."
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during Respondent's 1977 harvest and had hand-pi cked the crop, finding its
gual ity conparable to that of other fresh narket tonatoes. Mirphy further
found that the stemwas easily severed fromthe fruit in picking, which eased
hand pi cki ng and made nechani cal harvesting feasible. Mirphy felt that this
seed was promsing and, that if a sufficient stand of plants devel oped for the
upcoming 1978 harvest, ¥ nechanical harvesting of fresh narket tonatoes woul d
be likely. Mirphy had previously investigated fresh market tonmato harvesting
nachi nes, general |y padded- process tomato harvesters, in Forida and at Davis,
Galifornia.

O January 6, 1978 (all dates hereinafter wll refer to 1978 unl ess
otherw se stated), the parties net in negotiation wth Jerone Cohen, S eeg,
and a ranch crewfromQ P. Mirphy for the Uhion, and Soll prinarily
representi ng Respondent. Respondent fornally offered the Meyer Contract and
Gohen conditional |y accepted. The naj or issue separating the parties was the
pi ece-rate, Respondent offering 33-1/2 cents per bucket and the Uhi on
denandi ng 40 cents. n February 10, Gohen inplied the Union woul d accept a
piece-rate of 35 cents if all |ocal issues were settled. By March 28, when
every ot her issue had been settled, the Union was fornally seeking a pi ece-
rate of 36 cents, but was prepared to accept 35 cents, and Respondent was

still offering 33-1/2 cents.
h March 29, Mirphy requested advice fromSoll and

5/ Wen seeds are germnated i n a greenhouse, once the seedlings have
germnated and taken hol d, a stand has devel oped. Respondent's prior history
wth Lebar G eenhouses indicated that a sufficient stand woul d probably
devel op no later than February or March 1978.
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Wayne Hersh, a nenber of the |aw firmrepresenti ng Respondent in negotiations,
on nechani zation for the 1978 harvest. Stoll infornmed Mirphy that the issue
had been negotiated and the | anguage fromthe Meyer Contract woul d be
controlling. In other words, Mirphy was free to nechani ze his 1978 harvest,
provided he informed the Lhion prior to inplenenting the decision, so that
there could be negotiation wth respect to training, rehire, and other issues
arising fromnechani zation as set out in the Meyer Contract. Soon thereafter,
Mirphy told Stoll to informthe Union of his anticipated nechani zati on and on
April 17 Soll infornmed Gohen by phone that Respondent antici pated sone
nmechani zati on and wanted to di scuss the effects of that decision on the
bargai ning unit.

The next neeting between the parties was on April 18, at which
Respondent increased its piece-rate offer to 34 cents and the Uhi on denanded
35 cents. (ohen testified that he thought that an informal understanding on
35 cents had been reached and when he reacted to the apparent breach of this
under standi ng, Soll wal ked out. Mechanization was not di scussed. Stoll sent
the Uhion a letter later that day reiterating Respondent’'s intent to
nechani ze. Another letter was sent notifying the Uhion that Respondent had
requested the Sate Gonciliation Service to intervene in the negotiati ons.

The Uhion responded by letter dated April 18 fromnegoti at or
Steeg. The letter did not request either bargai ning over nechani zation or
a new neeting date. ohen wote for the Union on April 24, rmentioning the
proposed nachine rate (and hence nechani zation) but w thout derandi ng

bar gai ni ng over the
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deci sion to nechani ze or over its effects on the bargai ning unit. However,
this letter proposed neeting dates of My 4, 5, 9-12, 15-19, and 22-26. The
letter stated that the only issues separating the parties were the one-cent
difference on the piece-rate and certain unspecified | ocal issues. The
parties set a neeting for May 18 whi ch Respondent cancel |l ed and the Union
reschedul ed for June 1. During this six-week period, the Union nmade no
request for information regardi ng seed, harvester nodel, testing data, or
other factors that mght have forned the basis for Mirphy's decision to
nechani cal | y harvest the tonato crop. Mreover, the Uhion did not respond to
Stoll's suggestion on sorter rates, or nention layoff, rehire, retraining, or
any ot her bargai nabl e i ssue.

Because the Union believed that nechani zati on was not
economcally feasible, it failed to take Respondent' s nechani zati on
proposal seriously, apparently viewng it as nmerely a device to put
addi tional pressure on the Lhion to accede to Respondent’'s proposal of a
pi ece-rate of 34 cents.

h April 27, Murphy signed a purchase agreenent wth Johnson Farm
Machi nery, naking a deposit of sorme $10,000 on the total price of nearly
$96, 000 for the tomato harvester. Delivery was scheduled for July 1, but was
not effected until the first week in August. The conditions of the sale
i ncluded an option for Respondent to cancel, in which case the deposit woul d
either be forfeited or credited toward the purchase of a harvester in a later
year. The Uhion was not infornmed of this purchase agreenent,

O June 1 the parties net wth a conciliator fromthe
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Sate Gonciliation Service. After they initially listed najor areas of

di sagreenent (the Union |isting nechani zati on and Respondent not nenti oni ng
that issue), the parties were separated. The Union asked the conciliator to
ascertai n how serious Respondent was about nechani zation. After neeting each
party separately, the conciliator declared the parties at inpasse on the

pi ece-rate and recessed themsubject to his call, wthout addressing the
Lhion's request regarding Respondent's intentions as to nechani zati on

O June 19, Stoll again requested the Uhion's position on
nechani zation, specifically asking for a response to the previous proposal
suggesti ng nachi ne-sorter rates. The Unhion responded on June 26 with a |ist
of questions on nechani zation. In that letter, the Lhion stated that it
obj ected to any nmechani zation whi ch di spl aced workers, essentially reiterating
the original Whion nechanization article first proposed i n August of 1977.
The Whion's questions concerned the scope of nechanization intended. No
request was nmade for harvester type or seed variety.

Respondent answered the Lhion's questions when the parties next net
on July 20. Specifically, Soll stated that Respondent anticipated "fromzero
to one hundred percent” nechanization. TomDal zell attended this neeting for
the Union in order to further explore the seriousness of Respondent's intent
to nechanize. It was Dal zell's opi nion, based on his research, that fresh
nar ket tonatoes coul d not be mechanical |y harvested economcal |y for anot her
five years. Dalzell requested the nodel of the harvester and al so asked to
| ook at the nachine. Soll responded that he did not know the nodel or

nanuf act ur er .
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Mirphy, who was at that neeting, did know the nodel and manuf acturer but
neglected to give that information to Dal zel |. Respondent asked whet her the
Lhion was wthdraw ng fromits agreenent as to the | anguage fromthe Myer
Gontract, including the article on nechani zati on. The Uhi on responded t hat
It was not doing so because it was still investigating the seriousness of
Respondent's intent to nmechanize. The parties net again on July 21 and
Respondent gave the Uhion a bookl et on nechani cal harvesting of fresh
nar ket tonatoes, fromwhich Dal zell agai n concl uded that nechani zati on was
not economcal ly feasible.

By letter dated July 25, Dalzell requested further information,
i ncludi ng the nodel and type of the harvester, and its economc feasibility.
The answers to these conprehensi ve questions shoul d have al |l oned the Uhion to
appreci ate the seriousness of Respondent’'s decision to harvest fresh narket
t omat oes by machine and to bargai n about that decision. The variety of seed
was specifically requested, as Dal zel| had begun to appreciate that the naj or
probl emw th the nmechani cal harvesting of fresh nmarket tonatoes woul d be the
devel opnent of a suitabl e seed.

At the next neeting, July 27, Soll answered the aforesaid
questions to Dal zel |'s satisfaction, except that Mirphy refused to disclose
the seed variety. Mirphy viewed the informati on as secret.? Respondent

requested the Uhion's counterproposal to

6/ Muir phy bel i eved he had cornered the narket on the seed and wanted to sell
it to other growers. The variety was Pet oseed MH #20974 and cost $300.00 a
pound (conpared with other tonmato seed that sold at $25.00 per pound).

Pet oseed was a commercial entity that woul d sell seed, even M (nechani cal
harvest) #20974, to any purchaser.
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its letter of April 18 on the effects of the nechani zation on the bargai ni ng
unit and the Uhion responded that it was still investigating.

The parties net again on July 28, but the Uhion still was unw | ling
to bargai n about nechani zation. (ohen stated that Respondent shoul d consi der
distributing sonme of the projected | abor cost savings to the displaced
workers, but Respondent rejected this suggestion. Dalzell testified that he
vi ened Respondent's position in requesting the Unhion' s counterproposal as one
open to bargai ning over both the decision and its effects on the bargaini ng
unit, but he felt unprepared to bargain w thout know ng the variety of the
seed. Respondent had witten the Union on July 21 that although Respondent
was wlling to negotiate the effects of nechanization, the nechanization
deci sion woul d be i npl enented on August 7, with or wthout agreenent wth the
Uhi on.

Cal zel | continued his investigation and the parties net again on
August 3, but did not discuss nechanization. They met again on August 7, and
at this neeting Respondent formal |y accepted the proposal of March 28 (the
Meyer Contract | anguage and a pi ece-rate of 35 cents per bucket). Mirphy took
Cal zel | aside and told himthe seed variety. The Lhion again refused to
di scuss nechani zation, stating that investigation was still in process on that
decision. The Whion filed the present charge on the next day, August 8.

Subsequent to the filing of the charge, the parties continued to
neet. According to Dalzell's testinony, the Meyer Contract |anguage,

including Article 15 on nechani zati on, was
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still on the table. The parties net on August 16, 23, and Septenber 7, during
which tine the Uhion requested and received nore information. O Sept enber
11, the Whion presented a new nechani zation article and formally wthdrewits
proposal of the Meyer (ontract |anguage. The parties continued to neet
through the 16th of Qctober, when Respondent joined a | arger group w th which
It continued negotiations until July 1979.

D scri mnatory D scharges

In early August 1978, various nenbers of the Chavez famly (Aneli a,
AwliaL,, Aigelina, Jose, Trinidad, Jr., and Joaquin) applied to Respondent
for work as hand-pi ckers. As set out above, Respondent gave first preference
in hiring to persons who had conpl eted the previ ous season and then hired
other applicants on a first-cone, first-served basis as needed throughout the
season. The Chavez famly nenbers were recalled to work in 1978 on the basis
of their seniority. Wen the famly nmenbers reported for work, they were
i nforned that Respondent was hiring no hand-pi ckers and that the only
positions avail able were as machine sorters. The famly nenbers started to
fill out the applications but did not conplete themas they | acked certain
necessary infornation. They took the forns hone to return the next day.

Trinidad Chavez, S., who had been attending the negotiations on
behal f of the Whion as a nenber of the ranch coomttee for Respondent's
enpl oyees, heard of this devel opnent when he returned hone that evening. He
told his famly nenbers that Respondent had promsed that day that if workers

passed up
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the harvest for 1978 because they desired only hand-pi cki ng work they woul d
not lose their seniority for 1979. In reliance on this, no nenber of the
Chavez famly returned with conpl eted applications. Steeg testified that both
during the break and during the nain negotiations on August 7, 1978, Soll and
Mirphy agreed that hand-pi ckers would retain their seniority even if they
declined to accept nmachi ne work. Respondent did not deny havi ng made such a
pr om se.

In 1979, the nenbers of the Chavez famly were not recall ed as they
had been in 1978. At the appropriate tine (approximately July 1979) Angeli na,
Arelia L., and Trinidad Chavez, S., applied for hand-picking work. They
request ed applications but they were not allowed to apply. The bookkeeper
told the applicants that Respondent had al ready hired enough hand-pi ckers for
1979 and was planning to lay off some of themin the near future. The
bookkeeper took their nanes and tel ephone nunbers and promsed to call if work
becane avail abl e, but they were not thereafter called for work.

Respondent used the sanme hiring procedure for 1979 that it had used
In previous seasons. |t gave priority to those applicants who had conpl et ed
the 1978 season and hired other workers as avail abl e on the day needed. The
effect of this practice was to revoke the statenents nade at the August 7,
1978, negotiating session. Respondent's failure to abi de by the agreenent
reached in 1978 and its refusal to rehire the Chavez famly nenbers based on

their 1977 seniority is alleged to be a violation of section 1153 (c¢) and (a).
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The Duty to Bargain Over the Decision to Mechani ze

Respondent excepts to the ALOs conclusion that its decision to
nechani ze the fresh narket tomato harvest was a nmandat ory subj ect of
bargai ning. A though the exceptions were not filed inatinely natter, and

al t hough Respondent relies on San denente Ranch v. ALRB (1980) 107 Cal . App. 3d

632, whi ch decision the Supreme Gourt has overturned in rel evant part, (1981)
29 CGal . 3d 874, we nonet hel ess address the issue. n June 22, 1981, the U S
Suprene Gourt issued Frst National M ntenance Corporation v. NLRB (1981) 101
S Q. 2573 [107 LRRM 2705] (hereafter FNMD finding an economc decision to go

partially out of business not to be a mandatory subj ect of bargai ning. The
Gourt specifically rejected contrary reasoning i n cases such as Brockway Mt or
Trucks v. NLRB (3d dr. 1978) 582 F.2d 720 [99 LRRM 2013] and (rark Trail ers,
Inc. (1966) 161 NLRB 561 [63 LRRM 1264]. Since the ALOrelied on Brockway

Mtor Trucks and C(rark Trailers in fornulating his decision, we find it

necessary to take up this section of the ALOs Deci sion.
Good-faith col lective bargai ning requires the agricul tural
enpl oyer and the representative of its enpl oyees

... to neet at reasonabl e tines and confer in good
faith wth respect to wages, hours, and other terns and
conditions of enpl oynent, or the negotiation of an
agreenent, or any questions arising thereunder, and the
execution of a witten contract incor ﬁorati ng an%;
agreenent reached if requested by either party, but
such obligation does not conpel either party to agree
to a proposal or require the naking of a concession.
Labor Gode section 1155. 2(a).

The basi c principles which we nust apply to al l egations of
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surface-bargaining violations are set forth in our decisions in
Q P. Mirphy Produce ., Inc., dba Q P. Mirphy & Sons (Cct. 26 1979) 5 ALRB
No. 63 (QP.M 1V, supra), and Mntebello Rose ., Inc., et al. (Ct. 29,

1979) 5 ALRB No. 64. V¢ nust determine by examning the totality of its
conduct whet her Respondent acted wth a "bona fide intent to reach an
agreenent if agreenent [was] possible.” Alas MIls (1937) 3 NLRB 10 [1 LRRV
60]; Vst Coast Casket Conpany (1971) 192 NLRB 624 [ 78 LRRM 1026], enf. in
part (9th dr. 1972) 469 F.2d 871 [81 LRRVI 2857] .

Here, the initial issue presented i s whether Mirphy's decision to
nechani ze his tonato harvest is a natter wth respect to wages, hours, and
other terns and conditions of enpl oynent and hence a nandatory subject of
bargaining. In NLRB v. Woster O vision of the Borg-VWarner Gorp. (1958) 365
US 342 [42 LRRMI2034] , the Suprene Gourt approved a di stinction between

mandat ory and perm ssive subjects of bargai ni ng whi ch had evol ved t hr ough

| ower court and NLRB cases. To determine whether a certain area i s nandatory
or permssive, several indicia have been established through the adjudicative
process. Wth respect to decisions affecting busi ness operations, the test
created by the National Labor Relations Board (NLRB) has general |y been

whet her the decision would result in the elimnation of bargaining unit jobs.”
Under this test, Respondent's decision to nechani ze woul d be a nandat ory

subj ect of bargai ni ng because it would be likely to cause

7/ See (rark Trailers, Inc. (1966) 161 NLRB 561 [ 63 LRRM 1264]; Brockway
Mot or Trucks (1977) 230 NLRB 1002 renanded Brockway Mdtor Trucks v. NLRB (3d
dr. 1978) 582 F.2d 720 [99 LRRM 2013] ; Note, Autonation and Col |l ective
Bargai ning 84 Harv. L. Rev. 1822, 1838-42.
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an eventual elimnation of approxinmately eighty percent of the
bargai ning unit jobs. The ALO herein adopted this test.

If an enpl oyer decides to subcontract bargai ning unit work, the
Suprene Gourt has created a broad presunption that before inpl enenting that
deci sion the enpl oyer nust submt it in tentative formto the collective
bar gai ni ng process. H breboard Paper Products v. NLRB (1964) 379 U S. 203
[57 LRRM 2609]. A though F breboard is |imted by its | anguage to the

specific facts of that case (Id. 57 LRRMat 2613) , the anal ysi s undertaken

therein is applicable to a broad range of nanagerial decisions. |In that

case the enpl oyer, notivated by economic concerns, ¥ decided to
subcontract the unit work and gave the union no opportunity to bargain

about the decision. Chief Justice Warren, witing for the majority,
st at ed:

The inclusion of "contracting out" within the statutory
scope of col |l ective bargaining al so seens wel | designed to
ef fectuate the purposes of the National Labor Rel ations
Act. (ne of the prinmary purposes of the Act is to pronote
the peaceful settlenent of industrial disputes by

subj ecti ng | abor - nanagement controversies to the nedi atory
I nfluence of negotiation. The Act was franed wth an
awareness that refusals to confer and negotiate had been
one of the nost prolific causes of industrial strife.
[Atation.]

To hold, as the Board has done, that contracting out is a
nmandat ory subj ect of col | ective bargai ni ng woul d pronot e

t he fundanental pur Bose of the Act by bringing a probl em of
vital concern to | abor and managenent wthin the framework
est abl i shed by Congress as nost conduci ve to industrial
peace. |d., 57 LRRM 2612.

8/ The notivation of the enpl oyer was used solely to show that, had the
enpl oyer allowed the union to bargain, the union presunptively coul d have
contributed useful ideas on the issue of reducing the enpl oyer's | abor
costs. Fbreboard Paper Products v. NLRB, supra, 57 LRRMat 2613.
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In response to this broad anal ysis, Justice Sewart concurred
separately, arguing that the nmajority holding was really quite narrow
Justice Sewart stated that if the inpact of a managerial decision on job
security is

... extrenely indirect and uncertain ... this al one

nmay be sufficient reason to conclude that such

decisions are not 'wth respect to ... conditions of

enpl oynent.” Yet there are other areas where

deci st ons by nmanagenent nmay quite clearly inperil job

security, or indeed termnate enpl oynent entirely.

An enterprise nmay decide to invest in |abor-saving

nachi nery Another nmay decide to liquidate its assets

and go out of business. Nothing the court hol ds today

shoul d be understood as inposing a duty to bargain

col l ectively regardi ng such nanageri al deci si ons

which lie at the core of entrepeneurial control.

Id., Sewart, J., concurring, 57 LRRMat 2617,

enphasi s added.
However clear and pertinent the enphasi zed | anguage nay be to the present
case, Justice Sewart could only convince two other Justices to agree wth
his reading of the majority opinion. The NLRB, consistently, and with
fairly uniformsupport fromthe Gourts of Appeal, has viewed F breboard as
nmandat i ng bar gai ni ng over any busi ness deci sion that can be characterized
as subcontracting bargai ning unit work. See Arerican Ganamd (o. v. NLRB
(7th dr. 1979) 592 F.2d 356 [100 LRRM 2640] enf. (1978) 235 NLRB 1316 [ 98
LRRM 1429]; Industrial Feeding & GCatering Ser. (1975) 216 N_.RB 1098;
H orida- Texas Frei ght (1973) 203 NLRB 509 [83 LRRM 1093] enf. (6th dr.
1974) 489 F. 2d 1275 [85 LRRVI 2845]; Pay N Save Gorp. (1974) 210 NLRB 311,
NRBv. Aver. Mg. G. of Texas (5th dr. 1965) 351 F.2d 74 [60 LRRV 2122]
enf. as nod. (1962) 139 NLRB 815 [51 LRRM 1281]; Blue Grass Provi sion (o.
(1978) 238 NLRB 910 [99 LRRM 1608] enf. (6th Gr. 1980) 636 F.2d 1127 [ 105

LRRVI 3487] .
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But see, Hollywood Roosevelt Hotel (1978) 235 NLRB 1397 [98 LRRM 1151] and
Sucesion Mario Mercado E Hjos (1966) 161 NLRB 696. However, when the deci sion

reached is not categorized as subcontracting, but rather as a decision to go
partially out of business, the Suprene Gourt now nmandates broad deference to
manageri al prerogratives, FNM, supra, 101 S Q. at 2584.

Witing for the majority in FNM Justice Bl acknun found that an
econom cal | y-notivated decision to shut down part of a plant was not a
nandat ory subject of bargaining. He gave great deference to the enpl oyer's
need for unencunbered deci sion nmaki ng, stating that "bargai ning over
nmanagenent deci sions that have a substantial inpact on the continued
availability of enploynent should be required only if the benefit for |abor-
nmanagenent rel ations and the col |l ective bargai ni ng process outwei ghs the

burden pl aced on the conduct of the business." FNMZ supra, 101 S G. at 2581.

The decision to partially close one's business is not generally one that wll
require bargai ning, reasoned the Gourt, for it "involve (s) a change in the
scope and direction of the enterprise [and] is akin to the deci sion whether to
be in business at all." 1d. at 2579-80.

In the course of reaching this conclusion, the Gourt rejected the

approach taken by the Third Arcuit in Brockway Mditor Trucks v. NLRB, supra,

582 F.2d 720, i.e., which created a rebuttabl e presunption that a decision to
partially close a business is a mandat ory subject of bargai ning. The Court
al so necessarily rejected a substantially simlar approach the Second G rcuit

had taken in Frst National Mintenance Corp. v. NLRB
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supra, 627 F.2d 596.
Inlight of the holding in FNMG it is nowclear that the fact that

a nanagenent deci sion necessarily results in the elimnation of bargaining
unit jobs does not of itself mandate bargai ning over that decision. Rather,
we nust focus on the nature of the decision itself, the notivation of the
enpl oyer in reaching its decision, the effect the decision has on the scope
and direction of the business, and the burden whi ch woul d be pl aced on the
nanagenent process by requiring bargaining wth the el ected representati ve.
V¢ concl ude that managerial decisions to autonate or nechani ze are
nmandat ory subj ects of bargai ning under the Act. The HF breboard deci si on notes
the interest of the enpl oyees and the possible contribution that the union
coul d nake to the econom c decisions to reduce | abor costs by subcontracting.
Al though the bal ance struck in FNMC wei ghs the col | ective bargai ni ng process
agai nst the burden placed on the enpl oyer's conduct of its business, the
underlying rationale is that a partial closing represents a decision invol ving
the scope and direction of the enterprise itself and as such is akin to the
decision to be in business at all. Respondent’'s notivation appears to be
primarily economc, and Respondent's busi ness renai ns substantially unal tered
in either scope or direction. Further, we note that by requiring bargai ni ng
here over the decision to nechani ze, no burden was pl aced on Respondent' s
deci si on-maki ng process. As Respondent's deci si on regardi ng nechani zati on

does not require altering the scope and direction
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of the enterprise, ¥

only a mninal burden is placed on the enpl oyer's
free conduct of its business by requiring bargai ning over its deci sion.
The purpose served thereby, i.e., enhancing collective bargai ning and
allowng the union to participate in the process, outwei ghs that burden.

V¢ are not unmndful of the enployer's right to invest substanti al
suns of capital in |abor-saving nachinery and to nodernize its enterprise by
changi ng fromanti quat ed processes to nore nodern techni ques. V¢ concl ude,
however, that the decision here does not rise to the level of "a change not
unl i ke opening a new |ine of business or going out of business entirely"
(FNMC supra, at 101 S Q. at 2579-80; Textile Wrkers v. Darlington Co.

(1965) 380 US 263, 268. Rather, we find that this decision is of such a

sort that requiring collective bargaining about it will pronote the snooth
operation of |abor-managenent relati ons and be conduci ve to | abor peace (see

FNMG supra, 101 S Q. at 2578, n. 11; HF breboard Paper Products v. NRB

supra, 57 LRRMat 2612) to a far greater extent than it wll burden the
conduct of the enpl oyer's busi ness.

V¢ reject the UFWs argunent that woul d forbid enpl oyers from
reachi ng even a tentative decision prior to collective bargaining. Tentative
decisions are all that F breboard and its progeny all ow an enpl oyer to reach

before bargai ning. An enpl oyer

9/ VW viewthis decision as nore akin to subcontracting bargai ning unit
work than to a decision to go out of business, partially or conpletely, wth
t he new nachi nery representing an anal ogue to a subcontractor. See F breboard
v. NLRB, supra, 57 LRRMat 2613; Gis Hevator (1981) 2556 NLRB No. 5 [106
LRRV 1343] .
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whi ch nakes a firmdeci sion before bargai ning woul d autonatically violate its
obligation to neet with an open mnd and consi der proposal s by the union.
Brockway Motor Trucks (Brockway I1) (1980) 251 NLRB No. 23 [104 LRRM at 1518];
dty Hospital (1977) 234 NLRB No. 3 [97 LRRM 1125, 1126]; @ obe-Ulhi on (1976)
222 NLRB No. 173 [97 LRRVI 1341].

In sum we find that Respondent had a duty to bargain, if the Union
requested it to do so, over its decision to nechani ze because the decision is
not a change in the scope and direction of the business and the burden such
bar gai ni ng pl aces on the conduct of the business of harvesting tonatoes is
out wei ghed by the benefit to | abor nanagenent relations. Qis Hevator (1981)

255 NLRB No. 5 [106 LRRM 1343]. However, we agree with the ALO t hat

Respondent was free to reach a tentative decision to nechani ze based sol el y on

its research and nanagerial acunen. Lange Conpany (1976) 222 NLRB 558, 563.

V¢ now address the issue of whether Respondent net its obligation
under the Act. This natter wll be considered in light of the specific
exceptions raised to the ALOs conclusion that Respondent fulfilled its
obligation under the Act. Qur analysis is prinmarily factual and invol ves all
the relevant evidence. Ve note that the totality of circunstances nust be

considered. ASHNE Farns, supra, 6 ALRB No. 3; Q P. Mirphy TV, supra, 5 ALRB

No. 63. V¢ agree with the ALOs conclusion that Respondent did not violate
section 1153 (e) and (a). Respondent notified the Lhion of its decision at a
ti me when neani ngful bargai ning coul d take place and in general it responded

pronptly and conpl etely to
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the Lhion's requests for informati on. The Whion nade no fornmal response to
Respondent's notification of its tentative decision to nechanize until nearly
seven nont hs had passed and the harvest was wel | under way.

The Uhion excepts to the ALOs conclusion that it acknow edged
agreenent on the Meyer Contract |anguage in March. As several letters and the
testinmony of ULhion negotiator Jerone Gohen, Marion Steeg, and Tom Dal zel | al
support the conclusion that the Lhion did then nani fest agreenent to the Meyer
Gontract |anguage, this exception is not persuasive. The fact that the ground
rules of the negotiation process nmade that agreenent tentative does not negate
the fact of the agreenent. The ULhion al so excepts to the ALOs finding that
Respondent's negotiator, Charley Soll, notified Uhion representative Jerone
Gohen of the proposed nechani zation on April 17. The conclusion is supported
by the record, which shows that Soll so testified and that Gohen di d not
contradict Stoll's testinony.

Both the UWFWand the General Gounsel except to the ALO s concl usion
that the Union failed to wthdraw the Meyer (ontract |anguage until Septenber,
notw thstandi ng notification of the proposed nechani zation in April. The
UFWs belief in March that nechani zation was economcally unfeasible is
consistent wth, and explains, the Uhion's failure to tinely request
bar gai ni ng about the decision. That Mirphy may have fornul ated his decision
as early as ctober 1977 and del ayed notifying the Union until April 1978 has
not been shown to have prejudiced the Lhion. V¢ note that on other facts,

such a long delay in providing notice coul d
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result in prejudice to the collective bargai ning process. Here we find
nerely that the Uhion evidenced no desire or wllingness to bargai n over
Respondent ' s proposed nechani zation once it |earned about it, and that
Respondent gave the Union adequate notice of the proposed change. @ obe-
Lhion, Inc. (1976) 222 NLRB 1081, 1083.

V¢ reject the ALOs conclusion that the Union engaged in bad-faith
bargai ning over the effects of the decision and thereby relieved Respondent of
its bargaining obligations. Rather, we find that the Union's m staken
assunpti ons about Respondent's notivations, which led to its intransigent
bar gai ni ng posture, amounted to a waiver by the Uhion of its statutory right
to bargai n over the machine-sorter rate and other issues regarding the effect
on bargai ni ng-uni t enpl oyees of Respondent's decision to nechanize. In dty

Hospital, supra, 234 NLRB No. 3, the enpl oyer notified the union of a

contenpl ated decision to elimnate the position of head nurse in obstetrics.
The NLRB hel d that although the union was notified, its first counterproposal
or response, besides a grievance under the existing collective bargai ning
agreenent, was nearly two nonths later. This delay, stated the NLRB, waived
the union's right to bargain. "The statute does not conpel the respondent to
seek out enpl oyees or require participation in negotiation for the purpose of
col l ective bargaining. ... [E npl oyees nust at |east have signified to the
enpl oyer their desire to negotiate.” 1d. at 97 LRRM1126. Smlarly, in
Industrial Feeding and Catering Service (1976) 216 NLRB 1098, a union took a

fixed position that the subcontracting
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proposed by the enpl oyer woul d viol ate the existing col | ective bargai ni nhg
agreenent. The NLRB found that this fixed position represented either an
inplicit inpasse on the effects issues or, alternatively, waiver of the
union's right to negotiate about that subject. The national board rejected
the contention that the union's position constituted bad faith. See al so,
Anrerican Can Go. v. NLRB (2nd dr. 1976) 535 F.2d 180 [92 LRRM 2251] enfing.
218 NLRB No. 17 [89 LRRVI 1585]; @ obe- Lhion (1976) 222 NLRB No. 173 [97 LRRM
1341]; American Buslines, Inc. (1967) 164 N_LRB 1055; Sucesion Mario Mercado E
Hjos, supra, 161 NLRB 696; Mffitt Building Material Go. (1974) 214 NLRB 582
[87 LRRVI 1491; Vegas Mie, Inc. (1974) 213 NLRB 841 [87 LRRVI 1269]; Seafarers,
Local 777 v. NLRB (D.C dr. 1978) 603 F. 2d 862 [99 LRRV 2093]; H ghl and Ranch
(Aug. 16, 1979) 5 ALRB No. 54 (ALO opi nion at pp. 45-6).

V¢ concl ude, therefore, that the Uhion, in the mstaken belief that
Respondent was not seriously considering nmechani zation but was using the
threat of nmechanization as a bargaining tactic to induce the Uhion to agree to
a piece-rate of 34 cents, waived its right to bargain over the effects of that
deci si on.

D scrimnatory Mtivation i n Mechani zati on

To establish a prina facie violation of section 1153 (c) of the
Act, the General (ounsel nust initially showthat the union activity of
enpl oyees was a substantial or notivating factor in Respondent's decision to
nechani ze its tonmato harvest. hce this has been acconpl i shed, the burden
shifts to Respondent to showthat it woul d have reached the same deci sion even

absent the
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enpl oyees' union activities. N shi Geenhouse (August 5, 1981) 7 ALRB No. 18;
Wight Line, Inc. (1980) 251 NLRB No. 150 [105 LRRM 1169]. The Ceneral

Gounsel relied on the foll ow ng evi dence to denonstrate that the enpl oyees'
union activity was the notivating factor: the timng of the deci sion,
Respondent' s past violations of the Act, and Respondent's all eged nani pul ati on
of the bargai ning process. The ALOinplicitly found that this did not
constitute the prina facie show ng necessary to establish a violation, stating
that a respondent's past violations can be used only to clarify present
conduct. The ALO found the present conduct unanbi guous. Therefore the only
evi dence consi dered rel evant by the ALO concerned the bargai ni ng sessions in
1978, during the course of which Respondent conplied wth the nechani zation

| anguage then on the tabl e and nmechani zed its operation with the intent to
save noney. ¥ FBEven assuning, arguendo, that the General Counsel presented a
prinma facie case of discrimnation, Respondent then has the burden of
establishing a lawful notive in nechani zing by show ng a val i d busi ness
justification for the decision. N shi Geenhouse, supra 7 ALRB No. 18;

Martori Brothers Dstributors v. ALRB (1981) 29 CGal . Sd 721 [175 Gal . Rotr.

626] .

The record denonstrates that Respondent woul d have

10/ The General (ounsel argues al so that evidence involving the
rel ati onship of Respondent and Charl ey's Farns shoul d be consi dered,
As the General Gounsel failed to file an interimappeal of (or except
to) either the ALOs ruling on the second day of the hearing that
Charley's Farns was not a joint enployer wth Respondent, or the
ALOs renoving Charley's Farns fromthe case, that evidence is not
properly raised by the General Counsel's excepti ons.
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deci ded t o nechani ze even absent the union activity of its enployees. This
determnation is supported, first, by Mirphy's testinony that he had a

| ongstandi ng desire to investigate nechani zati on; second, by his having grown
a test patch of Petoseed in 1977; third, by the subsequent bargai ning history
I n 1978 when Respondent gave the Uhion anpl e opportunity to bargai n over the
decision itself; and, fourth, by denonstrating the profitabl e nature of the
proposed change in its operations. Ve find that the enpl oyees' union
activity was not a basis for Respondent's nechani zation and that Respondent
has not been shown to have viol ated section 1153(c) or section 1153 (e) by

pl anni ng or inplenenting the mechani zation of its tomato harvesting.

Failure to Rehire the Chavez Famly

The General (Qounsel excepts to the failure of the ALOto enforce
Respondent's oral agreenent, during negotiations, to alter its seniority
systemso as to protect enpl oyees who refuse to perform nmachi ne-pi cki ng wor K.
V¢ find no nerit in this exception. The ALRB does not enforce contracts,
oral, witten, or inplied, unless the breach thereof is also an unfair |abor
practice. Mreover, it is axionatic |abor |aw that an enpl oyer nay
discrimnate wth respect to hiring or tenure for any reason, or for no
reason, so long as its conduct does not tend or amount to interference wth
enpl oyees' section 1152 rights. German, Labor Law pp. 137-8; Mrris,

Devel opi ng Labor Law, Chap. 6, p. Ill, et seq. and suppl.; Lu-Ete Farns (My
10, 1977) 3 ALRB Nb. 38; Borin Packing, Inc. (1974) 208 NLRB 280.

To establish that Respondent viol ated section 1153 (c)
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by failing to rehire the Chavez famly, the General Gounsel nust establish, by
a preponderance of the evidence that Respondent woul d not have failed or
refused to rehire the nenbers of the Chavez famly but for their union
nenber ship or union activity. Lawence Scarrone (June 17, 1981) 7 ALRB No. 13;
Lhited Oedit Bureau of Anerica (4th Ar. 1981) 242 NLRB No. 138 enfd. 643
F.2d 1017 [106 LRRM2751]; Wight Line, Inc., supra, 251 NLRB No. 150. In

ot her words, the General (ounsel nust prove a causal connection between the
enpl oyees' union activity and Respondent’'s subsequent failure or refusal to
rehire them Such a causal connection has not been established. V¢ therefore
affirmthe ALOs conclusion that the General Counsel has failed to present a
prina facie case that Respondent violated section 1153(c) and (a) of the Act
by failing to abi de by promses nade at the bargai ning table during the course
of negoti ations.
CROER

Pursuant to section 1160.3 of the Agricul tural Labor
Relations Act, the Agricultural Labor Rel ati ons Board hereby orders
that the consolidated conplaint herein be, and it hereby is, dismssed
inits entirety.

Dat ed: Novenber 3, 1981

HERBERT A PERRY, Acting Chai r nan

ALFRED H SONG Board Menber

JEROME R WALD E, Board Menber
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CASE SUMVARY

Q P. Murphy Produce Go., Inc. 7 ALRB Nb. 37

dba Q P. Mirphy & Sons (UFWY Case Nos. 78-CE113-M
78- & 113-1-M
78- C& 113-2-M
79- (& 330- SAL

ALODED S ON

The ALOfound that Respondent's decision to nechanize its fresh narket
tomat o harvest operation was a mandatory subj ect of bargai ni ng because t he
decision resulted in the |ayoff of bargai ning unit workers. He concl uded t hat
Respondent net its duty under the Act by bargaining in good faith over the
decision, i.e., by giving notice to the Union at a tine when neani ngf ul
bar gai ni ng coul d have taken place, and by responding pronptly to Uhi on
requests for information. The ALOfound that Respondent was relieved of its
obligation to bargain over the effects of its decision to nechani ze by the
bad-fai th bargai ning of the Uhion.

Wth respect to the allegation in the conplaint that Respondent's

nechani zation of its operation was an act of discrimnation against its

enpl oyees for engaging in union activity, the ALOfound that the General
Gounsel had failed to Fr esent a prima facie case. The ALO al so concl uded t hat
Respondent did not violate the Act by its failure to rehire enpl oyees seeking
only hand- Bi cking work in the season fol | ow ng nechani zati on, notw thstandi ng
its prior bargaining-table promse to al | ow hand- pi cki ng enpl oyees to retain
seniority shoul d they refuse nachi ne-harvest enpl oyment. He found that the
General (ounsel failed to prove a prina facie case in this regard al so.

BOARD DEA S ON

Inlight of arecent U S Suprene Gourt decision, Frst National
Mai ntenance Corp. v. NLRB (1981) 101 S . 2573 [107 LRRM 2705], rejecting the
test utilized by the ALOto determne whet her Respondent’'s decision to
nechani ze was itself a nandatory subject of bargal ning, the Board reconsidered
this portion of the ALOs decision. The Board concl uded that the nature of
Respondent' s nechani zati on deci sion could not be equated with a decision to go
out of business, either partially or conpletely. Mboreover, the decision to
nechani ze did not alter the scope or direction of Respondent's busi ness.
Noting that unilateral decision-nmaking is a major cause of |abor unrest, the
Board concl uded that the nmechani zati on decision was itself a mandatory subj ect
of bargaining. The Board affirned the ALOs concl usion that Respondent had
net its obligation under the Act by bargaining in good faith wth the Union
over that decision. Gontrary to the ALQ the Board concluded that the Uhion
did not engage in bad-faith bargai ning over the effects of that decision, but
rather waived its right to bargain by its dilatory conduct which invol ved an
I nvestigation of that proposed deci si on whi ch extended over six nonths.



Q P. Mirphy Produce Go., Inc., 7 ALRB No. 37

dba Q P. Mirphy & Sons Case Nos. 78-CE113-M
78- (& 113-1-M
78- CE- 113-2-M
79- CE- 330- SAL

The Board di scussed the case of discrinmnation under section 1153(c) of
the Act that had been presented by the General (ounsel, noting that a
prina facie case would shift the burden to Respondent to showthat its
deci sion to nmechani ze was supported by substantial business reasons and
was not a retaliation for its enpl oyees' prior union activity. The
Board considered the prior history of Respondent before the ALRB as wel |
as the totality of its conduct, and concl uded that Respondent had
rebutted the prima facie case, denonstrating a substantial business
justification underlying its decision to nechani ze.

The Board affirned the ALOs conclusion as to the | oss of seniority of
t he hand- pi cki ng enpl oyees, finding that Respondent's breach of its
b?r gﬁi ning-table promse did not establish a violation under section 1153 (c)
of the Act.

* * %

This Case Summary is furnished for information only and i s not an
official statenent of the case, or of the ALRB.

* * %
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DEa S ON

STATEMENT GF THE CASE

Fobert LeProhn, Admnistrative Law (Oficer: The above-
captioned cases, consolidated for hearing, were heard before ne in
Slinas, Galifornia, on February 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 19, 20, 21, 22
and on March 4 and 5, 1980.

Gonpl ai nt and Notice of Hearing issued August 22, 1978, in
Case No. 78-CE113-M al |l egi ng that Respondent, Q P. Mir phy Pr oduce Q. ,
Inc., d/b/a Q P. Mirphy & Sons,? vi ol at ed Secti ons 1153(a) and (e) and
Section 1155. 2(a) of the Agri cul tural Labor Relations Act in that it made
uni lateral changes in its harvest operations by using a nmachi ne harvester
t her eby di spl aci ng approxi mately 200 agricul tural enpl oyees heretof ore
used to harvest its crop. The conplaint was grounded on a charge filed
August 8, 1978. The conpl aint and charge were duly served upon
Respondent .

_ Respondent filed a tinely answer consisting of a general
denial and three affirnative def enses.

h Gctober 2, 1978, the Whited FarmVWrkers of Anerica, hereafter
"UFW" filed a First Anended Charge namng Charl ey Duncan and Francis Mirphy,
d/b/fa Charley's Farns (Farns) and Q P. Mirphy as joint enpl oyers. On Qctober
16, 1978, an Anended Gonpl aint issued all eging that Respondents had nade
unilateral changes in their operations by instituting nechani cal harvesting
and t hereby di spl aci ng t hose enpl oyees previously used to hand harvest their
crops. It was additionally alleged that the unilateral change was nmade in
order to punish agricultural enployees for their support for the UFW
Lhilateral changes in wages and working conditions were also alleged. Said
conduct was alleged to violate 881153(a), (c¢) and (e) and 81155.2(a) of the
Act. Respondent Mirphy filed a tinmely answer. No answer was filed by Respon-
dent Charley's Farns.

O August 30, 1979, the charge was filed in GCase No. 79- CE 330- SAL
all eging that Respondent Mirphy violated the Act by failing to hire certain
wor kers because of their participation in a strike agai nst Respondent .
Gonplaint, alleging a refusal to hire the Chavez famly in August, 1979, to be
violative of 881153 (a) and (c), issued Septenber 19, 1979. The charge and
conpl ai nt were duly served upon Respondent Mirphy who filed a tinely answer.
During the hearing the conplaint was amended to allege a refusal to hire the
Chavez famly because of their Union activities.

Though standi ng unexpl ained in the record, it appears an order
i ssued on Septenber 14, 1979, consolidating 330-SAL and 113-1-Mfor heari ng.

“Hereafter "CPM or "Mirphy."

-2



n January 8, 1980, a Second Anended Conpl aint issued stating wth
nore particularity the rel ati onshi p between Respondent Charley's Farns and
Respondent Murphy. Farns appeared specially and noved to dismss the
conplaint wth respect to it on the ground of |ack of service. The notion was
deni ed and thereafter on February 11, 1980, said Respondent filed an answer.

Uoon the conpl etion of the General QGounsel 's evidence of the issue
of the joint enpl oyer relationship between Mirphy and Farns, Farns' notion to
dismss the conplaint wth respect to it was granted. The heari ng proceeded
wth CPMas the sol e Respondent.

During the course of the hearing, General Gounsel's Mtion to Arend
Second Anended Conplaint to al l ege a course of conduct in violation of
81153(e) commenci ng February 8, 1978, was granted. =

Al parties were given full opportunity to participate in the
heari ng. Respondent Mirphy and the General Gounsel filed post-hearing briefs
I n support of their respective positions.

Upon the entire record, including ny observation of the w tnesses,
| nmake the fol |l ow ng:

FI ND NS GF FACT

A Jurisdictional Facts

Q P. Murphy Produce Gonpany, Inc., is a Texas corporation engaged
inagriculture in Mnterey Gounty, Galifornia, and is an agricultural enpl oyer
\(/\ithi)n the nmeani ng of 81140.4(c) of the Agricultural Labor Relations Act

Act).

The Wnited FarmWrkers of Arerica (UFW is and was, at all tlnes
naterial, a | abor organi zation wthin the neani ng of 81140. 4 (f) of the Act.=
It was certified as bargai ning representative for CPMs agricul tural enpl oyees
on March 17, 1977.-=

At all tines material Francis Mirphy was corporate secretary, and a
director and 40%owner of the Conmpany. CPMis licensed to do business in
Galifornia under the fictitious nane Q P. Mirphy & Sons. S nce 1973 Franci s
Mirphy has nanaged its day-to-day operations. (PMis engaged in the
harvesting, packing and selling of fresh narket tomatoes. |t does not grow
t onat oes

“Mtion nade and argued on February 22, 1980. Thereafter pursuant
to 8 Gal. Admn, Code 820222, the amendnent was filed in witing on February
25, 1980.

YRespondent adnitted the Jurisdictional facts in its answer.

YQ P. Mirphy & Sons, 3 ARBNa 26 (1977).
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and is not involved in the harvest, packing or sale of crops other than
t onat oes.

_ Respondent has two basic arrangenents wth growers, the difference
bei ng whether it is to harvest the grower's crop or whether the crop_is to be
harvested by the grower and transported to CPMfor packing and sal e.?

O April 17, 1977, the UFWdirected a letter to Respondent
requesting negotiations. The initial meeting was held June 29, 1977. Between
that date and Gctober 21, 1977, the parties held a series of neetings. The
Respondent ' s conduct during that period was the subject natter of the
proceedings in 5 ALRB No. 63. Wth the exception of one neeting, there was an
hi atus i n bargai ning sessions fromQCctober 21 until January 6, 1978.

B. Hstory 0 Bargaining During 1978

January 6, 1978:

The parties met on January 6 and di scussed wages, vacations,
hol i days, retroactivity and settlenent of the Chavez v. Ftzsimmwons | awsuit.
Charley Soll, Respondent's attorney and negotiator, suggested that the
parties consider formng a multi-enpl oyer group consisting of Meyer Tonat o,
Gonzal es Packing and Q P. Mirphy since these firns made up the Salinas Vall ey
tomato i ndustry. ¥

Soll proposed that the | anguage of the then existing UWagreenent
wth Myer be the basis for settlenent wth GPM Jerry Gohen, then General
Qounsel for the UFW responded that the Enpl oyer proposal s seened to be
| eading toward a resolution of differences. He said "the Uhion needed tine to
think about the entire issue"; that the ngjority of the Meyer |anguage woul d
be acceptable, but that seniority and recall issues would have to be ot herw se
dealt wth. Gohen also set forth .the UFPWposition on wages, retroactivity
and the settlenment of Chayez v. Fitzsi nmons.

~ There was no discussion during the course of the neeting of
nechani zati on. The Meyer contract contai ned | anguage on the subject nmatter.

During the interval between_rneetings there was an exchange of
correspondence between Steeg and Sol |7 By letter of January 10 Seeg set
forth the UFWunder standi ng of the GPM

¥See Q P. Mirphy Produce Qo., Inc., dba QP. Mirphy & Sons, 5 ALRB
No. 63 (1979), for a nore extended di scussion of Respondent's operations,
particularly the decision of the Admnistrative Law (Oficer.

9The UPWwas negotiating jointly with Gnzal es and CPM

"NMarion Seeg was the principal UFWnegoti ator.
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Gonzal es proposal of January 6. It was as fol | ows:
1. The Meyer Master inits entirety, wth further
di scussion of certain issues such as recall procedures
for seniority workers.

2. Settlenent of existing unfair |abor practices
agai nst bot h conpani es.

3. Settlenent of Chavez v. HF tzsi nmons.

4. Formation of the three conpany multi-enpl oyer
unit to negotiate together at end of 1978.

5. Noretroactivity for the 1977 season, 33-1/2 cents
per bucket and the right to use any 25 pound bucket.

Steeg s letter also noted the UFWposition to be that the "Myer's Master"
| anguage was acceptable "in general ."

o Letters were exchanged regardi ng the appropriateness of the wage
positions bei ng taken by each party. By letter of February 22, Soll
suggested a neeting on March 10. The date was acceptable to S eeg.

March 10, 1978:

At the neeting of March 10, the Uhi on proposed a piece rate of
$.36-1/2 per bucket, the Meyer contract including the January 1, 1979,
expiration date, and stated it was open to rmulti-enpl oyer negotiations after
the expiration of the initial agreement. In proposing the Myer agreenent,
the Wi on proposal thus included the foll ow ng provisions bearing on the issue
of nechani zat 1 on:

ARTI CLE 15-- Mechani zat i on

In the event the Gonpany anti ci pates nechani zati on of
any operation of the Conpany that wll pernanently

di spl ace workers, the Conpany before commrenci ng such
nechani cal operations shall nmeet wth the Uhion to dis-
cuss training of displaced workers to operate and

nmai ntai n the new mechani cal equi prent, the placenment of
di spl aced workers in other jobs wth the Conpany, the
training of such workers for other jobs wth the Com
pany, or the placing of such workers on a preferenti al
hiring list which the Gonpany and Union will use in
conjunction with Article 3, Hring.
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ARTI OLE 16- - Managenent R ghts

The Conpany retains all rights of nanagenent i ncl udi ng
the followng, unless they are limted by sone ot her
provision of this Agreenment: to decide the nature of
equi pnent, nachi nery, nethods or processes used; to in-
troduce new equi pnent, machi nery, methods or processes,
and to change or di scontinue existing equi prent,

nachi nery or processes; to determne the products to be
produced, or the conduct of its business; to direct and
supervise all of the enpl oyees, including the right to
assign and transfer enpl oyees; to determne when overtine
shal | be worked and whether to require overtine.

ARTI OLE 18—New or Changed (per ati ons

In the event a new or changed operation or new or changed
classificationis installed by the Conpany, the Conpany
shall set the wage or piece rate inrelation to the
classification and rates of pay in Appendi x "A' and shal |
notify the Uhion before such rate is put into effect.
Wiet her or not the Uhion has agreed to the proposed rate,
the Conpany may put the rate into effect after such
notice. In the event such rate cannot be agreed upon
mutual |y between the Lhion and the Conpany, the same
shall be submtted to the grievance procedure includi ng
arbitration for determnation begi nning at the Second
Sep. Any rate agreed upon or as determned by the
arbitrator shall be effective fromthe installation of
such new or changed oper ati on.

_ (ohen testified credibly that since Novenber, 1977, CPMhad
consistently been willing to accept the Meyer |anguage w th sone nodifications
on local conditions not applicable to its operations.

March 28, 1978:

The next neeting was held March 28, 1978. Proposal s were exchanged
on local issues and on wages. The U”Wstated that $.35 per bucket piece rate
was their "bottomline." There was no di scussion of nechani zation by either

party.

~ (OPMs position remai ned unchanged: Myer's would formthe basis for
institutional |anguage; wages and | ocal issues woul d have to be resol ved. 8/

8/ Testinony of Jerry Cohen defined —[ conti nued]

-6 -



March 29, 1978;

Soll and Francis Miurphy net, anong the topics di scussed was the
possi bility of nechani zati on.

Soll told Mirphy that nechani zati on had been di scussed and agr eed
upon during negotiations. He advised Mirphy that if he intended to i npl enent
nechani cal harvesting he should notify the Union to make sure there woul d be
no probl emand to . ascertai n whet her the Uhion mght have any opposition to
t he proposed nechani zati on.

April 4, 1978;

Uhder date of April 4, 1978, Steeg wote Soll summarizing the
itens discussed at their March 28 neeting. She stated; "A this tine we have
agreed to the Master (ontract Language and Econonmics for both conpanies wth
the exception of wage, |ocal issues, and recall procedure.” Thus, the URPWwas
acknow edgi ng agreenent on the three Meyer clauses set out above.

Sonetine during the first week of April, Mirphy told Soll; "[He
had t hought over the issue of nechani zation, and that he had made a deci si on
that he would like to go ahead wth notifying the Lhion." Soll telephoned
Gohen on the 17th to apprise himof Mirphy's decision and to say that CPM
wanted to discuss the issue of nechanization at their neeting the next day.

April 18, 1978;

The neeting of the 18th was devoted to a di scussion of the
di fferences between the parties on the piece rate i ssue. The Union noved from
$.36-1/2 per bucket to $.35 per bucket; CPMresponded by nmoving from$.33 to
$, 34 per bucket.

Gohen accused GPMof bargaining in bad faith. After a heated
di scussion, Stoll and the CPMrepresentatives | eft the meeting. S nce there
was no di scussion of nechanization at the neeting, Stoll sent Gohen a letter,
dated April 18, which stated in part;

As | discussed in ny prior conversation wth you on the
t el ephone the Conpany i s desirous of negotiating a
tomat o harvesting nachine sorting rate. The Conpany is
antici pating sone nechani zati on commencing at the begi n-
ning of the fall tomato season. V¢ are desirous of
having a neeting to discuss this issue and negotiate a
rate for the enpl oyees

8/ [continued]--"institutional issues" as "all the najor clauses in
the contract, that we try to devel op a uniformapproach across the board wth
the industry.” It would appear that rmanagenent rights, new or changed

operations and nechani zation qualify as institutional issues,
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who woul d be involved in. the nachi ne harvesting. |
woul d propose using the rate that is contained in the
Inter Harvest agreenent for tonmato nachine sorters. |
believe that the rate for the tine period of the harvest
is $3.70. P ease advise of available dates to discuss
this issue and to negotiate a rate for the nachi ne

har vest .

During the period between April 19 and June 1, 1978, there was no
request fromthe UFWfor a nmeeting on nmechani zation, nor did Soll receive a
reply to his April 18 letter. n April 27 Francis Mirphy executed a purchase
agreenent wth EMCQ Tractor Conpany calling for delivery on or before July
1 of a Button-Johnson Fresh Market Tonmato Harvester and accessories. The pur-
ChaSﬁ price was $95,288.70. It is unclear when the UFWwas nade aware of the
pur chase.

In a second letter to Gohen dated April 18, Soll proposed that a
state conciliator be invited to sit inon their neetings. Though intinating
that Soll's purpose in suggesting use of a consiliator was to del ay
negoti ations, (ohen by letter of April 24, 1978, agreed. A neeting set for
May 17 was cancelled by Soll due to the unavailability of one of the
principals. It was ultinately reset for June 1,

June |; 1978 ;

The parties net wth Joe Anderson of the Sate Conciliation
Service. The neeting began with the conciliator nmeeting jointly with the
parties and requesting each to state what it regarded as the issues separating
them Stoll responded that the big i ssue was one penny on the pi ece rate and
that there were several unresolved |ocal issues. Seeg responded for the UFW
and noted that a sorter rate in the context of nechanization was an i ssue
whi ch had come up recently and whi ch had not been resol ved. Neither party
ot herw se di scussed nmechani zation during their joint session. Soll testified
that Anderson nmade no nention of nechani zati on when he net separately wth GPM
represent atives.

During a Wiion caucus wth the conciliator, (ohen asked himto
attenpt to ascertain whether nechanization was a serious issue. Anderson's
response was, "That's all, kids. A this point we'll go hone."

June 19, 1978:;

Soll wote to Seeg, stating:

There was sone nention of this issue [nechani zation]
at our last neeting, but your position was never
nmade known,

Stoll also noted in his |etter of June 19 that he had received no fornal
response to his letter of April 18 proposing a neeting on
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mechani zation, as well as a nachine sorter rate of $3.70 per hour.

O June 26 Steeg responded to Soll's letter of June 19, stating in
part :

The issues of nechani zation and a sorter rate are all
subj ect to the negotiations which are still underway
... The Uhion at the |ast neeting on June 1 expressed
concern and obj ections to the Conpany's proposed
nechani zati on. However, as the conciliator termnated
the session until he calls us back, the issue was never
discussed in detail,’

The Lhion's position is that we object to any

nechani zat i on whi ch di spl aces workers w t hout anot her
agreeabl e and viable option for the workers. V¢ are
wlling to discuss any alternatives in order to reach a
nmutual solution to our problens. Until the total issue
Is resolved we are riot in agreenent on the rate, and we
woul d consi der any nechani zation, including the putting
into effect of any rate, a unilateral change until such
ti gle as the issue is resolved ... at the bargaini ng

tabl e.

_ ~ Steegs letter also contained a request for the fol | ow ng
information relative to the mechani zati on questi on:

1. Qopto be harvested, i.e., fresh market or cannery
t omat oes.

2. Percentage of work to be mechani zed.

3. Nunber of nachi nes to be used.

4. Nunber of workers per nachine, their
classifications and proposed rat es.

5. Anticipated nunber of hours per day machi nes
w il be worked.

6. Anticipated duration of harvest season.

7. Nunber, classification and rates of pay of other
t han nachi ne harvest enpl oyees.

8. Nunber of enpl oyees hired during the
1977 season.

Soll testified he received Seegs June 26 letter on July 5.

Thereafter he called Anderson to arrange a neeting for the purpose of
di scussi ng nechani zation. A neeting was schedul ed
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for July 20.
July 20, 1978:

The parties net wth Gonciliator Anderson who opened the neeting by
suggesting that the GPM nechani zati on probl embe di scussed. The di scussion
turned toward Steeg's June 26 request for information, and Soll answered the
queﬁti _onsdcont ained therein, noting that 100%of the work was to be
nmechani zed.

During the course of the joint session, Gohen stated ". . .he was
not in agreenent wth the nechanization. . , and unless there was an
agreenent, that [GPM couldn't inplenent the harvesting machines,” Stoll
asked ohen to give CPMa proposal . Gohen responded that the UFWneeded sone
tine toreviewthe infornmation it had recei ved from CPM and woul d al so need
nore extensive information in order to bargain intelligently. He suggested
that the neeting be continued until the UFWhad submtted its request for
additional infornation and recei ved GPMs response.

After separate caucuses the parties met again wth the conciliator,
Soll asked Gohen whet her the UFWwas wthdrawing its agreenent on the Meyer
nechani zati on | anguage. Y ohen sai d he coul d not answer that question, that
the UFWposi tion depended upon the infornation it received in response to
additional questions to be presented to GPM He said the Union coul d not
state a position w thout know ng the degree of worker displacenent, the
predi ct ed nunber of work hours, the factors in terns of noney CPMwas prepared
to put toward the worker, Gohen also stated: "... there is no agreenent on
nechani zati on because we have been deal i ng i n packages and the package had not
.beeB. agr eed to. therefore no | anguage on changed operations or mechani zation
IS bindings" =~

Soll asked for a proposal fromthe UFW (Cohen responded that he
could not give himone, Soll asked when the request for additional
i nformation woul d be forthcomng. Gohen did not know, Stoll asked why
additional information was needed; he stated that the UFWknew what work a
sorter perforned and that all we had to negotiate was a sorter rate, Soll
treated the probl emas an i ssue of a new or changed operation.

Gohen request ed the nmake and nodel of the harvester. Soll said
they did not have that information. He told Gohen that URWrepresentatives
coul d view the nachine when it arrived. |In response to a Gohen questi on,

Soll said that CPMwas mechani zi ng for economc reasons, that in the long run
costs woul d be | owered.

Indicative of the views of the UFWregarding the feasibility of
nechani zation as of that tine is the testinony of its

YNticle 15, supra.
Yg eeg testinony.

Wg eeg testinony.
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representati ve Tom Dal zel | who had done research on the subject. He testified
that based upon his readi ng he concl uded that mechani cal harvesting of narket
tonatoes was at |east five years down the road because a tonato variety which
woul d be successful for market tonato nechani cal harvesting had not yet been
devel oped. This opinion conflicts with that of Francis Murphy who had sone
nonths before determned that a Peto Seed variety was satisfactory for

nechani cal harvesting.

During the period between July 21 and the 27th, Dal zell talked to
various experts in the field wth the obj ect of ascertaining whet her
nechani cal harvesting was economcal |y feasi bl e. The concl usi ons of these
experts reinforced Dal zel|'s view that a suitable seed had not been devel oped,
i.e., one which readily permtted separation of the fruit fromits stem

July 21, 1978:

The parties net again wth the conciliator, Soll gave ohen a
copy of the Annual Report 1976-1977 of the Fresh Market Tonmato Advi sory Board
entitled "Fresh Market Tomato Research Program”

Soll also presented a letter dated July 21 directed jointly to
S eeg and Gohen which outlined what had transpired since April 18 as perceived
by Soll, The letter concluded wth the assertion that the U-Whad no
intention of discussing nechanization in good faith and wth the announcenent
t hat nechani zati on woul d be inpl enented on August 7, 1978. Soll's letter
al so stated that CPMwas

. . ready to neet 24 hours a day if necessary until
t he begi nning of the season on August 7, 1978 and
thereafter if necessary to reach agreenent . . . and
negotiate the effects of the proposed mechani zation on
the workers and al so reach an agreeabl e rate for the new
oper at i on.

The majority of the discussion during the July 21 neeti ng was

concerned w th issues other than nechani zation; discussion regarding the
nmanner in which the harvester operat ed.

July 27, 1978:

The parties met once nore wth CGonciliator Anderson on the 27th,
The neeting was devoted to joint CPMand Gonzal es i ssues,

During the interi mbetween neetings, Soll had recei ved the U”Ws
request for additional information regarding the harvester. O the 27th he
responded to each of the 27 itens contained therein, providing the i nformation

requested wth the exception of the request for the seed variety and one or
two itens
/1
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about whi ch CPM had no i nfornation. 12/

Gohen stated that the URWrecei ved no proposal s from GPMregar di ng
the workers di spl aced by nechani zation nor had it received any proposal
regarding training workers for work on the harvester. He said the UFW
representatives would have to neet wth "experts" to eval uate the nachine's
i mpact. Gohen told CPMrepresentatives that the harvester shoul d not be
inplenented until the talks ". . . reached a formal culmnation."

P ece rates, an hourly guarantee, size of buckets, rejection of
buckets, crew size and hand- pi cking crews were additional subjects di scussed
at the July 27 neeting. The discussion of these itens related both to PMand
Gonzal es. 13/ The neeting ended in the mddl e of the afternoon because of the
conciliator's nedical problens.

July 28, 1978:

The parties resuned negotiations wth Anderson present, Stoll asked
for a statement of the Uhion's position on nechani zation. The Quion's
representative responded that he could not state a position at that tinmne.
Gohen said the Whion needed to see the machine and to deal wth "... issues
that had not been dealt wth on that issue,” There was sone di scussi on
regardi ng how t he nmachi ne sorter positions would be filled, GCohen said the
UFWwas not accepting i npl enentation of the nachine, because if it were
successful, it would decinmate the fresh nmarket tonmato work force. 14/

_ There was al so discussion of seniority, seniority lists, recall,
| ocal issues and various economc itens such as wages, second picking, hourly
guarantees and the hourly picking rate.

August 3, 1978:

_ The discussions during the neeting on August 3 were devoted to
resol ving Gonzal es' probl ens. There was no di scussion of the GPM
nechani zati on i ssue.

August 7, 1978:

Regar di ng nechani zation, Soll stated "we accept the

12/ Testinmony of TomDal zell, The specific designation of seed
variety was conveyed privately to Dal zell by Francis Murphy wth the
understanding that it would be reveal ed only to persons at U C Davis to whom
Cal zel | tal ked. Mirphy did not want his conpetitors to I earn the specific
variety he was going to use.

13/ Testi nony of S eeg.

14/ Testi nony of Dal zel | .
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Lhion's proposal of March 28th; and as far as we' re concerned, the issue of
nechani zation is closed, Let’s nove on." Steeg responded, "Wl |, Pat Bel |l any
has been out there wth the machine for j two days al ready, so obviously the

i ssue is closed because you | have already done it," Soll responded that GPM
V\ﬁs willing toj negotiate "inpact-type things, training, displacenent” and

t he

like.

There was renewed discussion regarding the specific seed j being
used. Francis Mirphy took Dal zell into the hall and told |
hi mthe nane and nunber of the seed.

During the course of the neeting Steeg stated the UWs
opposition to the introduction of the harvester and to the recall of strike-
breakers to man it. She told Soll that CPM was inpl enenting the nachi ne at
its own risk, because there was no agreenent on howto man it. She al so stated
thath_ ". . .we were neither at agreenent or at inpasse on putting in the
nmachi ne. "

Soll asked Steeg to state the UFW position on the nechanization
article. Seeg responded that she needed nore tine to review the infornation
she had received and to see whether the machine would work. An oral request
was nade for additional information to which CPM responded after a |unch
r ecess,

Soll announced that the harvester woul d start operating
on August 8. The parties arranged to neet on August 16, Dal zell
cancel ed the neeting because he had not had a chance to talk to
the experts at UC Davis,

August 23, 1978:

Gonci | i ator Anderson was present at the August 23 neeting. Tom
Cal zel | was the sole UPWrepresentative present. He | rai sed questions
regardi ng the enpl oyees working on the machines, Soll told himthey were
nmanned by 16 to 18 seniority enpl oyees (and four new hires, Soll said the new
hires woul d be replaced as | seniority enpl oyees applied for work,

Cal zell said he could not give GPMa nechani zati on proposal until
he knew when the Conpany had deci ded to nake the nove. He reiterated the UFWs
concern about nechani zation of the fresh narket tomato harvest. He stated it
V\asfthedlhi on's first encounter wth the probl emand the representatives were
conf used.

A the time of the August 23 nmeeting the Ilast nechaniza
tion position placed on the table by the UW was Aticle 15 from
the Myer agreenent. No new proposal had been submtted, Dalzell
gave Soll another witten request for information. Soll said he
woul d respond in witing.

O Septenber 7, 1978, Dal zel |, acconpani ed by Paul
Barnett of U C Davis, inspected the harvester in the field. They
viewed the nachine in operation, and were aboard when it nade a
coupl e of passes.
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Septenber 11, 1978:

O Septenber 11, Dalzell sent Soll a new Uhion proposal on
nechani zation. It was acconpanied by a letter which stated in part:

At the tine that the United FarmVWrkers conditional |y
agreed to Article 15 (Mechani zation) of the "Master" or
Meyer's contract, the Uhion anticipated a contract which
woul d expire at the end of 1978. The Uhion did not
expect any nechani zation during the 1978 harvest season,
and the conmpany said nothing prior to our noving to the
Mast er | anguage on nechani zati1 on whi ch coul d have | ed us
to bel i eve ot herw se.

* * * *

Because you i njected the issue of 1978 mechani zati on
into the tal ks before agreenment was reached, because of
the substantial change i1 n circunstances, and because of
what we have to assune is bad faith on your part in the
bel ated notification ... of your intent to nechani ze,
the Uhnited FarmWrkers retract its conditional offer
and/ or acceptance of Article 15 of the Meyer's Mster
cont ract.

The proposal bore the format of an institutional proposal as well
as dealing wth local issues. It was apparently intended to be substituted
for Article 15 in the Meyer agreenent. In summary, it dealt wth the fol |l ow ng
natters: notice of intent to nmechanize, on-the-job training to fill job
openi ngs created by mechani zation, a limtation on the rate of displacenment of
workers, hours of work and a m ni numguarantee, a schedul e of wage rates,
severance pay for those pernanently laid off as a result of the nechani zati on,
rates of pay to be paid those denoted as a result of their displacenent, the
opportunity to bargai n about worki ng conditions when nechani zation is
contenpl ated, and a provision for arbitration in the event the parties cannot
reach agreenent, and a prohibition agai nst subcontracting. In addition to
these subject matters set forthinits Article 15 proposal, the proposal con-
tained a series of "Local |ssues” relating to the nmanner in which the nachi ne
was to be operat ed,

Qct ober 16, 1978 :

Cal zell and Soll met and agreed to defer further bargaining until
nast er agreenent negoti ations began i n Novenber, The tonato season was nearly
over and Mirphy was to be part of the naster agreenent negotiations. It was
concluded to be in no one's interest at that late point in the season to try
to get a precedent for the industry. (PMparticipated in the nmaster
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negotiations until sonetine in Septenber, 1979.

C Failure To Rehire The Chavez Famly

Wth respect to Respondent's failure to hire nenbers of the Chavez
fagily at the outset of the 1979 tonmato harvest, the follow ng findings are
nade.

Curing the 1977 CPMtomato harvest, Anelia Chavez,
Amrelia L. Chavez, Angelina Chavez, Jose Trinidad Chavez, Joaquin
Chavez and Trinidad Chavez, S ., were enpl oyed by GPM There was
a work stoppage |asting approxi mately one nonth at GPMduring the
1977 season. Menbers of the Chavez famly participated i n picket-
ing during the course of the dispute, Angelina testified that she
was observed pi cketing by one of GPMs supervisors. Her father,
Trinidad Chavez, S., was arrested for trespassing during the
course of the dispute.

Wien the work stoppage concluded, the Chavez famly was
recalled to work the two or three days renai ning in the season,

In 1978, in response to recall notices from PV
Angel ina and the other nenbers of her famly, her father excepted, went
to the CPMshed seeking work. As seniority workers, she and

her sister were each given applications for work. The application form
requires listing one's green card nunber. Nei t her si ster had
her card at the tine. They were instructed to return and give M
their card nunbers.

Wien they applied, the sisters were told there was nmachi ne work
avai | abl e.  Neither wanted nachi ne harvester work, and they did not return to
conpl ete their application forns. They were later called to cone to work but
did not do so. Neither worked during the 1978 season. No hand pi ckers were
hired in 1978, There was sonme hand pi cking work, but it was perforned by
t he peopl e who al so worked as nachi ne sorters.

Trinidad Chavez, ., told his daughters that they woul d
not lose their seniority if they declined to work on the nachine,
He told them Mirphy had stated during negotiations that anyone who
did not want to work on the nachi ne woul d not |ose seniority, 15/

It was their reliance on this infornation coupl ed with their Tack
of interest in working on the machi ne which notivated their not
returning to work when call ed.

In 1979, Angelina, Awelia and Chavez, ., applied for hand-pi cking
work. They testified they were told that there were only three days hand-
pi cking work, that CPMhad enough peopl e for hand-pi cking and was going to | ay
of f some workers. They were also told that they would be called if needed.
The bookkeeper

| 5/ The Senior Chavez was on the negotiating coomttee for the UFW
and attended sone of the neetings during 1978.
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took their nanes and tel ephone nunber. 16/ A though the Chavezes sai d t hey
shoul d be given applications even though no workers were needed, Vasquez did
not do so.17/ There is no evidence ot her persons seeking work under simlar
ci rcunst ances were given applications .

The only testinony elicited regardi ng when the Chavez famly sought
work in 1979 cane fromRespondent’'s w tness, Vasquez. She placed the tine as a
nonth prior to the harvest. She testified that she told the sisters that they
had 1 ost seniority by not reporting for work when called in 1978. S nce the
Chavez famly had previously worked for CPVM it is reasonabl e to concl ude they
were anare of the GPMpolicy of sending recall notices to seniority peopl e
directing themto report for work wthin the next three days. Thus, it is
unl i kel y they woul d have sought work a nmonth i n advance of the start of the
harvest. 18/ Therefore, Vasquez's testinony regardi ng the date the Chavezes
sought work is not credited. S nce no attenpt was nade by the General Gounsel
through his own witnesses to establish the date, there is no clear or direct
evi dence fromwhi ch to draw a concl usi on regardi ng when work was sought. The
testinony of the sisters regarding what transpi red when they sought work
supports a finding that the interviewtook place after the season commenced.
However, the record does not show whet her the Chavezes sought work on a day on
whi ch non-seniority workers were hired or on a day when other non-seniority
wor kers were given applications.

At the neeting of August 7, 1978, there was di scussion of
classifications and of the seniority list. (PMstated that workers havi ng
previously worked for the Conpany who did not choose to work on the machi ne
woul d not lose their seniority in their other classifications such as hand
pi cker, dunper, checker or trailer puller. This position was |later reiterated
to UFWnegotiator Steeg by Soll during the course of a break in the
neeting. 19/ Steeg was uncertain whether Chavez, S ., had attended this
neet i ng,

Notw t hstanding CPM's representation at the bargaining table in
August, 1978, Respondent at the outset of the 1979 season effected its rehire
policy in the sane manner as it had in 1978. People who did not report when
called in 1978 were regarded at the outset of the 1979 season as havi ng | ost
their seniority. e

16/ Car nen Vasquez.

17/ Testinmony of the Chavezes. Vasquez was not questioned
regardi ng appl i cations,

18/ As long-tine tomato harvesters, it is reasonable to infer an
awar eness of the approxi nate starting date for the 1979 harvest on the part of
the Chavez famly.

19/ Testinony of Marion Steeg. Athough both Francis Mirphy

and Charley Soll testified, neither was questioned regarding Steeg s
testinony on this point.
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hundred twenty-si x peopl e, including the alleged di scri mnatees, were so
treated.

N neteen seventy-six was the first year Mirphy hired its own
enpl oyees, having previously used a | abor contractor. A seniority list was
prepared in 1977 and is the list the Conpany used to solicit workers at the
start of the 1978 and 1979 seasons, striking therefromworkers who | ost
seniority. 20/

It is GPMs practice to call or wite people prior to the start of
the season and ask themto cone into fill out applications. Solicitation of
the workers starts shortly before the start of the season. Subject to sone
exceptions, a worker is given three days to respond. |If the worker fails to
respond to the recall, his seniority is broken, and he is treated by CPMin
the same nanner as one who has never worked for the Conpany. This practice
was fol |l owed in 1979.

By the mddl e of the 1979 harvest season, the seniority list had
been exhausted. People having no seniority were hired. Before the list was
exhaust ed, when seniority people failed to report for work in response to a
call, workers were hired off the street. As seniority persons appeared
thereafter, the new hires were repl aced.

During 1979 CPMdid not take applications fromevery non-seniority
per son seeki ng work. There does not seemto have been a fixed policy beyond
having a few on hand to cover crew shortages. There is no testinony regardi ng
what, if any, criteria were used to determne when new applications were to be
accepted at tinmes other than the date of hire.

Wen the seniority |list was exhausted, people were hired from anong
those at the shed or fromanong those fromwhomthe Respondent had accept ed
applications. An attenpt was nade to reach those whose applications were on
file. Consistent with its practice in 1978, (PMrequired seniority workers
who were recalled to conpl ete new appl i cations.

During the period between July 25 and August 4, there were 54 "new
enpl oyees hired, 15 of whomwere hired for hand-pi cking. Wth the exception of
four or five of the applications, there is no indication of whether the person
was hired the day of the application or at sone |later date. Fromthe comments
set forth on the application form it appears likely these persons started
work the day their applications were taken, that is they were hired fromanong
those waiting at the shed. F fty-two of the applications bear dates between
July 25 and August 2. Francis Mirphy testified that on an occasi on GPMi ssued
acall for 50 seniority people who failed to report and who had not notified
(PMthey were not going to report. \Wrkers were hired fromanong

20/ There is one seniority roster for all field workers irrespective of
cl assification.
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peopl e waiting at the shed seeking work. These persons were | ater bunped of f
the job when seniority workers reported. This testinony tends to corroborate
the inference that the applications introduced by the General Counsel (G C
Exh, 45-A were conpleted the day the applicant started work. There is no
evidence that the Chavez famly was at the shed between July 25 and August 4
or that they sought work prior to August 4.

ANALYS S AND GONCLUS ONS

A Duty To Decision Bargain

The threshol d question presented herein i s whet her Respondent had a
duty to bargain regarding its decision to swtch fromhand harvesting to
nmachi ne harvesting of tomatoes. If there be a duty, other questions follow
regarding the nature of the duty and how one ascertains whether it was
Sﬂ.ti sfied, when the duty arose and what, if any, defenses are available to the
char ge.

The Board was presented wth a case involving a partial closure of
operations in P &P Farns, 5 ALRB No, 59 (1979). The Admnistrative Law
Gficer found an obligation to bargain about the effects of the shut-down of
t he enpl oyer' s on-site onion packi ng shed, but he did not find an obligation
to bargain regarding the decision to termnate the shed s operations. The
Board reversed, but wthout dealing wth the substantive issues, stating:

In order to establish a Section 1153(e) viol ation here,
General (ounsel nust prove an obligation to bargain
existed at the tine changes were deci ded on or nade.
Part of that proof is to showthe date of the decision
or changes . «» . [No testinmony or other evidence
was received as to the date on whi ch Respondent nade or
effectuated its decision to cease oni on production and
close its packing shed. In the absence of evidence as
to when the deci sion was nade, we can nake no
determnation t hereof,

* * * %

Accordingly, we conclude that Respondent did not
violate Section 1153(e) and (a) of the Act by failing
and refusing to bargain ... concerning the wages, hours
and wor ki ng conditions of the oni on-shed workers and/ or
to bargain over the effects on said workers of the

cl osure of the onion shed.

[P &P Farns, supra, Sip Qoinion, pp. 3-4.]

. In a recent opinion involving the enployer's decision to sell its
operations, made during the hiatus between dismssal of its election
obj ections and i ssuance of certification, the Court
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of Appeal Second D strict stated: 21/

An enpl oyer has an undoubted right to cease bei ng an
enpl oyer and to go out of business, and that decision is
not subject to negotiation. According an enpl oyer
anything less "would significantly abridge 1ts freedom
to manage its own affairs. Bargaining is not
contenplated in this area under the history and usage of
88(a) (5) ." (29 USC 8158(a) (5).) (NLRB Y.
Adans Dairy, Inc. (8th Ar. 1965) 350 F.2d 108, 111.)
The right to conpletely go out of business is

untrammel ed even if the decision is pronpted by vindic-
tive aninus against the union. (Textile VWrkers v.
Darlington CGo. (1965) 380 U S 263, 269-274 [13 L. E. 2d
827, 833-836, 85 S .. 994].)

A deci sion to change the basic operations of a conpany
receives simlar treatnent: the decision itself is not
a subj ect of bargaining, at least if it is based on
sonet hi ng ot her than antiuni on ani nus.

[Supra, at p. 652; citations omtted.]

In a footnote to the above observations the court notes that there
nay be a duty to bargain about a decision to partially go out of business if
it 1s notivated by a purpose to weaken the union in other operations of the
enpl oyer and if the enpl oyer nay reasonably have foreseen that it woul d have
that effect, citing Textile Wrkers thion v, Darlington Mg. Go., 380 U S
263, 274-277 (1965).

No contention was nmade in H ghl and Ranch that the enpl oyer had an
obligation to bargain over its decision to cease operations. The Issue was
nei t her consi dered nor discussed by the Board; it was not before the court and
the observations set out above cannot be regarded as dispositive of the issue.

Lacki ng precedent fromeither the Agricul tural Labor Rel ations
Board or state court decisions, we turn to decisions under the National Labor
Rel ations Act (NLRA). 22/ Prefatory reference to the ALRAis appropriate.

- Labor Code 81153(e) nakes it an unfair l[abor practice to refuse to
bargain in good faith. Bargaining in good faith is defined in 81155.2(a) as
t he performance of the mutual obligation of

21/ San denente Ranch..Ltd. v. Agricultural Labor Relations Bd. , 107
CGal . App. 3d 632 (1980).

22/ Labor Code 81148.
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obligation to bargain over its decision to cease operations. The issue was
nei t her consi dered nor discussed by the Board; it was not before the court and
the observations set out above cannot be regarded as dispositive of the issue.

Lacki ng precedent fromeither the Agricultural Labor Relations
Board or state court decisions, we turn to decisions under the National Labor
Relations Act (NLRA).22/ Prefatory reference to the ALRA is appropriate.

~_ Labor Code 81153(e) nakes it an unfair |abor practice to refuse to
bargain in good faith. Bargaining in good faith is defined in 81155.2(a) as
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21/ San A enente Ranch. Ltd, v. Agricultural Labor Rel ations Bd., 107
Cal . App. 3d 632 (1980) .

22/ Labor Code 81148.
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the union and the enpl oyer to meet and confer in good faith wth respect to
wages, hours and other terns and conditions of enpl oynent; an obligation which
does not require either party to agree to a proposal or to nake a

concessi on. 23/

As defined in 81155,2(a), the obligation to bargain extends only to
subj ect nmatters which fall wthin the scope of wages, hours and ot her
conditions of enploynent, i.e., the nmandatory subjects of bargaining. It has
| ong been established under the National Labor Relations Act that an enpl oyer
viol ates 88(a)(5) by effecting a change i n wages, hours and ot her conditions
of enpl oyment w thout notifying the bargai ning representative of such pro-
posed changes and affording the opportunity to bargain wth respect to the
proposed changes. 24/

Over the years the National Labor Rel ations Board has been asked to
deci de whet her such enpl oyer actions as goi ng out of business, transferring
bargai ning unit work to another location or to a subcontractor, partial
closure of its operation, or automation are nandatory subjects of bargai ni ng.
The cases invol ve two questions: (1) does bargaining in good faith require
that the enpl oyer bargain about its decision to effect one of the cited
changes; or (2) does the duty to bargain require only that the enpl oyer
bargai n about the inpact or effect of its decision upon the menbers of the
bargaining unit. |If the answer to the first questionis yes, § 8(a)(5) is
vi ol ated when the enpl oyer nmakes and effects its decision wthout notification
1t:o_tRe uni on and w thout affording an opportunity to neet and confer in good

alth.

The National Labor Relations Board has held that decisions to
subcontract unit work, to transfer or close partially an operation and to
autonate are all nandatory subjects of bargai ning; 25/ and despite a | ess than
charitabl e reception by the courts has persisted in its views. 26/

It wll facilitate understandi ng of the result reached herein to
review briefly the nore significant NLRB cases. The point of originis
F breboard Paper Prods. Gorp. v. NL. RB., 379 US 203 (1964), in which the
court enforced a Board order hol di ng

23/ Labor Gode 81154(c) requires good faith bargai ning by a | abor
or gani zat i on.

24/NL.RB v. Katz, 369 US 736 (1962) .

25/ Town & Gountry Mg. Co., 136 NLRB 1022, 1027, enforcenent
granted, 316 F.2d 846 (5th dr.1963); Rochet d/b/a Renton News Record, 136
NLRB 1294 (1962) ; Senco, Inc., 177 NLRB 882, 894 (1969).

26/ See: NL.RB v. Wnn-Dixie Sores, Inc., 341 F.2d 750 (6th Qr.
1965), cert. denied, 382 US 830 (1965); Wéltronic . v. NL.RB., 419 F. 2d
1120 (6th dr. 1969) , cert, denied, 398 US 939 (1970); but see Royal
Typewiter . v. NL.RB, 553 F.2d 1030 (8th dr. 1976).
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the enpl oyer was obligated to bargain not only about the effects of its

deci sion to subcontract but al so about the decision itself, even though the
deci sion was notivated by a desire to effect economes and absent any ani nus
toward the union.

The court found that the statutory phrase "conditions of
enpl oynent" covered contracting out of unit work and the concomt ant
termnation of unit enpl oyees. It reasoned that requiring bargai ni ng woul d
advance the statutory objective of "bringing a problemof vital concern to
| abor and nanagenent wthin the framework" of peaceful resol ution.

The court went on to note that F breboard had nmerely substituted
one group of enpl oyees for another group doing the sane work in the sane
plant. The change did not alter the conpany's basic operation and di d not
I nvol ve any capital investnent; thus, requiring bargalning regarding the
deci sion woul d not significantly abridge his freedomto rmanage hi s busi ness.
The court al so stated the enpl oyer's notivation in subcontracting was the
expectation that the work force size woul d be reduced, fringe benefit costs
woul d be |owered and that overtinme paynents would be elimnated. These are
clearly nandatory subjects of bargal ning and although it mght be unlikely
that agreenent coul d be reached, the uni on nust be given an opportunity to
di ssuade the enpl oyer fromgoing forward with his decision.

Finally, the court limted its decision to the type of
subcontracting involving the substitution of the group of enpl oyees for
another to do the sane work under simlar conditions of enpl oynent, and
concluded that its decision did not expand the scope of mandatory bar gai ni ng.

In an often-quoted concurring opinion, Justice Sewart stated:

An enterprise nay decide to invest in |abor'
saving equipnent . . . Nothing the court

hol ds today shoul d be understood as i nposi ng
a duty to bargain collectively regardi ng
such nanagerial decisions which lie at the
ggée] of entrepreneurial control. [Supra, at

Not w t hstandi ng Justice Sewart,s observation, the Board has continued to find
a duty to decision bargain regardi ng nechani zation.

The anal ytical simlarity between a situation in which bargai ni ng
unit enpl oyees are substituted out by a contractor's enpl oyees and one in
whi ch a machi ne di spl aces the enpl oyees i s clear; however, autonation cases
have not frequently appeared. The National Labor Rel ations Board in Rochet,
d/b/a Renton News Record, 136 NLRB 1294 (1962) , a case predati ng F breboard,
hel d that the enpl oyer had an obligation to bargain regarding its decision to
purchase a new press resulting i n aut ormati on acconpani ed by a work force
reduction. In a post H breboard case, R chland,
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Inc., 180 NLRB 91 (1969), the NLRB found the enpl oyer violated § 8 (a)(5) by

not bargai ning about its decision to autonate.

The rational e of requiring an enpl oyer to bargai n about
a decision which will result in displacenent of unit workers has
been best articulated in those cases in which an enpl oyer unil a-
terally effects a partial shut-down of its operations. Starting
wth Czark Trailers, Inc., 161 NLRB 561 (1966), the National Labor
Rel ati ons Board has consistently found an enpl oyer's failure to
bargai n over the decision to close part of its business to be vio-
| ative of 88(a)(5) and (1) of the NLRA 27/ A recent expression of
its reasons for so doing 1s set forth in Brockway Mtor Trucks,
230 NLRB 1002, 1003 (1977): 28/

Lhil ateral changes in enpl oynent conditions
nay not be effectuated w thout bargaining
regardl ess of whether a collective-

bargai ning agreenment is currently in effect.
This obligation renmai ns notw t hstandi ng an
enpl oyer's contention that such a require-
nent significantly restricts its ability to
nanage the business. The underlying ratio-
nal e for requiring bargai ni ng over such
natters is that the union-en behal f of and
as representative of the enpl oyees—shoul d
be accorded an opportunity to engage in a
full and frank di scussion regardi ng such de-
cisions. Inthis way parties are presented
wth an opportunity to expl ore possible al
ternatives to accommodat e their respective
interests and thereby to resol ve what ever

i ssue confronts themin a nutual |y accept
abl e way.

Athough it is unlikely that this Board or
any ot her body coul d ascertai n whet her a
discussion that is held pursuant to the re-
quirenents of the Act wll cause any change
inthe tentative plans of an enpl oyer, the
results of a bargai ning session are not ger-
nane to the statutory requirenents of the
Act. Rather, in the event a party refuses
to bargain, the Act requires that this Board
order the parties to the bargai ning tabl e
where they nust neet and confer at reason-
able tines in good faith. In this way, the
| aw | eaves undi sturbed the parties' sole

27/ See (General Mtors Gorp., GMC Trucks & Goach Division, 191 NLRB

951 (1971).

28/ Enf' d Brockway Mbtor Trucks y. NL.RB., 582 F.2d 720 (3rd Qr.

T778). See also Sone and Thomas, 22L NLRB 573 (1970).
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right to determne the substantive terns of their

rel ati onship while al so guaranteeing, at the very

| east, the right of each party—n this instance
particularly that of the Uhi on—+0 have an opportunity
to influence the final decisions. Wether the final de-
cisionis actually influenced i s undoubt edly
significant to the parties; however, the purpose of the
| aw and the Board s sole function is to assure that
such an opportunity in fact exists.

[ Supra, footnotes omtted.]

As noted herein as well as by both counsel, the NLRB deci sions in
the plant shut-down and anal agous cases have not al ways been enforced by the
Gourt of Appeals. This situation requires consideration of how an
Admnistrative Law Oficer shoul d construe "applicabl e precedents” as used in
Labor Code 81148. An NLRB Admni strative Law Judge i s bound to apply
est abl i shed NLRB precedent whi ch the Suprene Gourt or the NLRB has not
reversed. 29/ The Admni strative Law Judge i s bound by Board deci si ons and not
by Court of Appeal decisions until such tine as the Board changes its
position.30/ It is appropriate, absent ALRB direction, for the Admnistrative
Law G ficer to accept the NLRB s position regardi ng precedents bindi ng upon
its Admnistrative Law Judge's in determning "applicabl e® NLRA precedent to
followin the instant case. Thus, it is NLRB precedent as enunciated in the
N_RB cases cited which is applicable rather than U S Qourt of Appeal s
decisions in which the circurt refused to enforce an NNRB order. So doing, it
foll ows that Respondent was required by 881153(e) and 1155.2(a) to bargain
wth the UFWregarding its decision to nechani ze its tomato harvesting
oper at i on.

V¢ turn now to determne whether Respondent net its duty to
decision bargain. Initially it should be noted that the problemtroubling the
Board in P & P Farns, supra, is not present here. The only testinony of fered
regar di ng when Respondent deci ded to nechani ze was that of Francis Mirphy who
testified that he nade the decision sonetine during the first week in April,
1978. Absent any attenpt by the General CGounsel to prove ot herw se, Mirphy's
testinony is entitled to be credited, particularly since the April date places
the decision wthin the §81160.2 period, and it was arguably agai nst his
interest to so testify.

O January 6 Murphy submtted a proposal whi ch contained three
provi sions dealing wth the general subject natter

29/ 1 owa Beef Packers, Inc., 144 NLRB 615, 616 (1963); Novak Loggi ng
Gonpany, 119 NLRB 1573, 1575-76 (1958).

30/ Fred Jones Manufacturing Co,, 239 NLNRB No. 9 ( ) ; Ford Mtor
G"., 230 NLRB 716, 718 (1977); Roberts Hectric (o.
Inc., 227 NLRB 1312 ( ).
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of autonmation or nechani zati on. CPM proposed that the UFWs exi sting contract
w th Meyer Tonat o Conpany, another Salinas Valley tomato harvester, serve as
the basis of settlenent. The URWs response was that the majority of its
Meyer contract woul d be acceptabl e, but that certain issues (unrelated to
nechani zati on) woul d requi re separate consi deration.

At the March 10 neeting, the UFW as part of its package, al so
proposed the Meyer agreenent. Thus, the parties on that date had tentative
agreenent on three Meyer contract provisions bearing on mechani zation:
"Managenent R ghts,” "New or Changed Q(perations" and "Mechani zation."
Thereafter, the UPWdid not submt another proposal on nechani zation until
Septenber 11, |Its Septenber proposal was acconpanied by a | etter
acknow edgi ng there had been tentative agreenent on nechani zation in Mrch.
The UFWexplains its March wllingness to adopt the Meyer contract in terns of
not expecting nechani zation in 1978 and charges that G°M did nothing to | ead
the hion to any other conclusion. This positionis at odds wth credited
testinony that Respondent notified UAWrepresentatives as early as md-April,
1978, of its contenpl ated nechani zati on and acconpanied its notification wth
a request to neet.

~ Respondent's duty to decision bargain regardi ng nechani zation arose
at the tinme the decision was nmade,

[1]n no case has the [NLRB] held that an em
pl oyer nust defer maki ng a deci sion concern
Ing terns and conditions of enpl oyment unti l
it has first conferred with the representa-
tive of its enpl oyees. The requirenent is
that, after reaching the decision, the em
pl oyer nust then notify the representative
and afford the opportunity to discuss that
decision and to consider alternative propo-
sals. Thus, in Czark Trailers. |ncorporated,
161 NLRB 561 (1966), the [NLRB] nade It
clear that the illegality lay not in the
fact that the enpl oyer had first nade the
deci sion before consulting wth its em

pl oyees' representative, the illegality |ay
In 1nplenentation of that decision prior to
affording the representative an opportunity
to advance and di scuss al ternative courses
of action.31/

If an enployer were required to bargain regarding a de-
cision to nechanize prior to naking the decision, great instabi-
lity would be <created in the bargaining relationship. If formla-
tion of decision had to be deferred, bargaining would be reduced
to being conducted in a vacuum

31/ Lange Gonpany, 222 NLRB 558, 563 (1976).
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Enpl oyers are entitled to first reach a decision. This
provides the starting point for any bargai ni ng whi ch
then mght foll ow However, enployers nust then be
wlling to consider the alternatives proposed by the
bar gai ni ng representatives before inpl enenting those
deci sions. Thus, once the enpl oyer notifies a
representative of a decision affecting enpl oyees whi ch
the latter represents, the burden is upon the represen-
tative to indicate whether it w shes to pursue the
natter by obtaining further details and by bargai ni ng
wth the enpl oyer concerning the natter. Gonversely, it
Is the burden of the enpl oyer to supply the union wth
what ever i nformation concerning the decision which the
|atter seeks and to listen wth an open mnd to what ever
alternative proposal s are advanced. [Lange Gonpany,
supra, at pp. 563-564.]

As part of its duty to bargai n regardi ng nechani zati on, Respondent
nust gi ve the Unhion advance notice of its intention to nechani ze and provi de
the Lhion with a fair opportunity to bargain. 32/ Respondent net its duty in
this respect by notifying the UFWon April 17 and 18, within two weeks of
nmaki ng the decision, of its intention to nechani ze and by si mil taneously
requesting a meeting on the subject natter. The parties net on April 18,

1978. Because the neeting was nonproductive wth respect to di scussion of
other issues and termnated w thout discussion of nmechani zation, Soll wote
Gohen a letter, dated the 18th, again putting the Uhion on notice of Mirphy's
contenpl ated action and agai n expressing a desire to neet to di scuss the issue
and to negotiate a rate for enpl oyees working on the harvester. A fair readi ng
of the April 18 letter is that Mirphy expressed a wllingness to discuss both
the decision and its effect upon unit enpl oyees. No response was received from
the hion until June 1. The failure to respond i medi ately is, not expl ai ned
except interns of the UWs belief that the feasibility of nechani cal
harvesting of narket, tonatoes was several years in the future. Gertainly,
prior to June 1, the Lhion made no denmand that Mirphy bargain about its
nechani zation decision. It nmade no proposals regarding alternatives to
nechani zation, alternatives ained at reversing or substantially nodifyi ng
Mirphy' s deci sion. Mreover, the Uhion's response on June 1 did not seek any
di scussion regarding the decision, but rather was |imted to stating that one
of the unresol ved i ssues was a nachine sorter rate, clearly an "effects”

i ssue.

Havi ng put the Whion on notice of its intended nechani zation,
Respondent took no further affirnative steps regardi ng bargai ning on the
Issue. Nor did it have an obligation to do so

32/P. B Mitrie Mdtor Transportation ,Inc., 226 NLRB 1081
(1976) ; Lange Conpany, supra, at 563.
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in the absence of a response fromthe Uhion. Having received notice, the

Uhi on nust denand bargai ning on the i ssue before a violation of 81153(e) can
be found. 33/ It was incunbent upon the Lhion to enforce its bargaining rights
by attenpting to persuade Mirphy to alter its decision if it found that

deci si on unaccept abl e. 34/ The Act does not conpel the Respondent to seek out
the | bargaining agent or request its participation in collective bar-

gai ning negotiations. To put Respondent in default, the Uhion nust signify its
desire to negotiate.35 S nce the UAWdid not hi ng whi ch can be construed as an
effort to bargain regardi ng nechani zation prior to June 1, 1978, it waived its
right to conplain that Respondent violated 81153(e) before that tine.36/ This
Is not a case in which the Uhion can claimit was excused from denandi ng

bar gai ni ng because the notice was i hadequate; it was recei ved sufficiently in
advance of inplenentation to permt a reasonabl e scope of bargaini ng. 37/

If inplenentation is viewed as the acquisition of the harvester,
the Whion had 10 days' notice. This was sufficient tine for the ULnion to
denmand deci sion bargaining or to submt a request for infornation. In view of
the fact that no response to Respondent's notice was communi cat ed for
approxi mately two nonths after receipt, it is reasonable to infer that
notification sone two weeks earlier, i.e., immediately after the decision was
nade, woul d not have spurred the UFWto action. Aternatively, if
i npl enentation be regarded as the day the harvester first operated, the UFW
had al nost four nonths' noti ce.

As noted, the Enployer's duty to decision bargai n regardi ng
nechani zati on arose when it nmade the decision. The Uhion's burden of
requesting negotiations regardi ng the deci sion nust be satisfied by demand for
such negotiations or by a request for infornation made before inpl enentati on
of the decision. QOnce the decision has been inpl enented w thout a bargai ni ng
denand, the Enpl oyer's obligation to bargai n regardi ng the issue expires.

33/ obe-hion, Inc. , 222 NLRB 1081 (1976) ; Lange
Conpany, Ssupr a.

- 34/ Averican Buslines, Inc., 164 NLRB 1055 (1967); U S Lingerie
Gorporation, 170 NLRB 750 (1968),

35/ National Labor R Board v. Golunbian & Sanpi ng Co.,
306 US 292, 297-298 (1939) . '

36/International Ladies’ Garnent VWrkers Whion, AFL-AQ .
NL RB, 463 F.2d 907, 918 (DC dr. 1972); Anerican Buslines . Inc., Id.;
US Lingerie Corporation, Id .See also: | Mffitt Building Material s
Gonpany, et al, 214 NNRB No. 110 () ; Association of Mdtion RFicture and
Tel evi sion Producers, Inc., 204 NLRB 807 (1973).

37/International Ladies' Garnent Wrkers Unhion; AFL-A Q .
NL RB, supra, at 919.
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Thereafter, its obligationis limted to bargain, upon request, regarding the
effects of the decision. Thus, in the present case if the date the harvester
was acquired [April 17] is the date of inplenentation, Respondent cannot be
held to have violated its duty to bargain on the issue, because no demand was
nade prior to inplenentation of its decision,

GPM s deci sion was i npl enent ed upon the purchase of the harvester
wth the concomtant coomtnent of a capital expendi ture approxinating
$95,000.00. Certainly the likelihood of effective bargai ning regarding CPMs
deci sion can be expected to be | ess after purchase of the harvester. 38 Wen
the harvester was purchased, the mechani zation deci si on had been effect ed.

Nbt hi ng renai ned except to await the ripening of the vines.

Just as requiring decision bargai ning before a decision is nade
woul d be disruptive of neaningful collective bargaining, a requirenent that an
enpl oyer engage i n deci si on bargai ni ng subsequent to inplenentation, absent a
demand for such bargai ning, would be disruptive of stable bargaining
rel ati onshi ps. Wen there has been no union response to its tinely notice of
nechani zati on, an enpl oyer reasonably can regard the union as uninterested in
deci sion bargai ning and proceed wth its plan. The Act inposes upon both the
UFWand Respondent the duty to bargain in good faith prior to inpl enentation.
In the present context, a request by the Lhion for decision bargai ning was the
Lhion's counterpart notice requirenent. Failing to neet this obligation prior
to inpl enentation, the U~Wcannot successfully claimthat GPMvi ol at ed
81153(e) by failing to decision bargain.

The conclusion that CPMnet its duty to decision bargain is not
altered by regarding i npl enentation as occurring on the date the harvest
commenced, August 8, S nce the earliest conduct of the Uhion which could
renotely be construed as a demand to bargain on the issue occurred at the June
1 neeting, Respondent cannot be charged with having failed or refused to
bargain on the issue prior to that date. The Union's conduct at the June 1
neeting cannot be construed as a demand to bargain regardi ng the deci sion.

The only nention of the general issue was Seeg' s listing of di sagreenent
regardi ng a machine sorter rate as one of the 1ssues separating the parties.
This is an "effects" issue rather than a "deci sion" issue,

A denand to bargain regarding the decision was finally nade by the
Lthion in the letter fromSeeg which Soll received on July 5. V& turn to an
exam nation of Respondent's conduct subsequent to July 5 to ascertai n whet her
aviolation of its duty to decision bargain can be found.

38/Inthis regard it can be noted that CPMs purchase of the Reto
seed, an event occurring outside the 81160.2 period cannot be regarded as
I npl ement ati on of a nechani zation decision. Francis Mirphy testified credibly
that he intended to use the seed irrespective of whether he harvested by hand
or nechanical ly.
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o Woon receipt of Steeg's letter Soll contacted the state
conciliator to set up a neeting. The parties net on July 20. There is no
evi dence that Respondent is chargeable with preventing an earlier neeting
dat e.

At the July 20 neeting, (CPMresponded to the request for
i nformati on whi ch acconpani ed Seeg's June 26 letter. Wen asked to state
their position regardi ng nechani zation, the Uhi on spokesnan responded that he
could not do so until he reviewed the information supplied by CPM noreover,
he stated that the Whion would require nore i nformation and suggest ed
deferring the nmeeting until the UFWsubmtted its request for additional
i nformation. Wien asked whet her the UFWwas w thdrawi ng the tentative
agreenent regardi ng the Meyer mechani zation | anguage, the Lhion representative
coul d gi ve no answer.

The parties net on the 21st at which tine GPMannounced that it was
goi ng to conmmence operating the harvester on August 7. Stoll stated the
Gonpany was prepared to engage in narathon negotiations to resolve the
nechani zati on i ssue.

The parties nmet again on July 27. Soll responded to the questions
he had received during the interval between neetings. The parties net again
the next day, and the Union was still unable to state its position on
nechani zati on and nade no proposal regarding the issue. During this entire
period, its response was |limted to "we're agai nst mechani zation, and if the
harvester is utilized, it's at your own risk."

The parties met on August 3, but no attenpt was nmade by the Uhi on
to di scuss nechani zation. A the next neeting on August 7, the Unhion nade no
proposal s and no statenent of position beyond bl anket opposition to
Respondent' s use of the harvester; rather, the U-Wopted to file the unfair
| abor practice charge underlying the conpl aint herein.

The parties net on August 23 and still no proposal was forthcom ng
fromthe UFW n Septenber 11, nore than a nonth after the harvest commenced,
the Whion submtted 1ts first proposal on nechani zation since its Myer
proposal in March, 1978. Thereafter, the parties nmet in Cctober and nutual |y
agreed to . defer further discussions pendi ng naster agreenent negotiations in
which CPMwas to partici pate.

Respondent during the period it had an obligation to bargain
regardi ng nechani zation did not refuse to do so. It did not refuse to neet;
it responded pronptly to all requests for infornmation; it urged that it be
gi ven a proposal regardi ng nechanization .if the Uhion' s position was ot her
than that tentatively agreed to in March. 1ts bargai ni ng posture was
consistent wth the March agreenent and responsive to the Uhion' s bargai ning
posture fromJune 1 thereafter. Nor, view ng the circunstances as a whol e, can
It be said that Respondent engaged in surface bargai ning on the nechani zation
i ssue. The conpl ai nt al | eges surface bargai ni ng conmencing in February, 1978.
For the reasons noted
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above, Respondent had no duty to decision bargai n since no demand was nade
prior to inplenmentation. Aternatively, if August 8 be viewed as the

I npl enentation date, the duty arose on July 5 with receipt of Steeg's letter.
Respondent ' s conduct subsequent|y does not manifest the indicia of bad faith
necessary to establish surface bargai ni ng. 39/

B. Duty To Bargain Regarding Efects G Mechani zati on

A though the conplaint alleges a failure and refusal to bargain
regarding the effects of nechani zation, the General (ounsel nakes no ar gurent
regarding effects-bargaining inits brief. However, since the charging
al legati on has not been wthdrawn, it nust be di scussed.

Respondent concedes its obligation to bargain regarding the
effects of its decision to nechani ze its harvest operation. However, it does
not concede that its conduct violated the Act. It presents three def enses:
(1) it did not fail or refuse to bargain; (2) the UFWwaived its right to
bargai n regarding i npact; and (3) the UAWengaged in bad faith bargai ning on
the issue. V& turn to those argunents.

Wien Respondent initially notified the UFWof its intent to
autormate, it proposed a $3,70 per hour wage rate for nachine sorters, and
requested a neeting to discuss rel ated probl ens. This conduct was consi st ent
wthits obligation to neet and confer in good faith. Nor is there reason to
i nfer fromRespondent's conduct during the period between February 5 and Apri l
17 .that its proposed wage rate and request for a neeting on the nechani zation
I ssue was not nade in good faith.40/ The rate proposed was a rate found in the
Lhion's agreenent with Interharvest, and thus not one whi ch coul d be known
patently to be unacceptable to the Union. As noted above, Respondent's action
of April 18 elicited no response fromthe UFWuntil June 1 when the Uhi on
announced to the conciliator that there was no agreenent on a nachi ne sorter
rate. Having been notified of Respondent’'s intent to nechani ze and havi ng
recei ved a proposed wage rate covering the operation, the burden was on the
Lhion to proceed to enforce its bargaining rights by requesting a neeting or
by maki ng counterproposals in lieu of a neeting. It did neither until the
June 1 rneeting. The

39/See Q P. Murphy; Produce (o,, Inc., dba Q P. Mirrphy & Sons, 5
ALRB Nb, 63 (1979), Sip oinion pp. 2-12, Inviewof this conclusion, it is
unnecessary to consider the nerits of Respondent's affirmative defense that
the UFWwas guilty of bad faith decision bargai ning,

40/ The Board's determnation in Q P. Mirphy, 5 ALRB No. 63 (1979)
that Respondent had failed to bargain in good faith is not evidence of such a
failure or refusal during the relevant tine frame in the instant case. The
earlier decision can only be used to shed |ight in draw ng i nferences from
equi vocal conduct occurring during the 81160, 2 tine period invol ved herein.
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Lhion's failure to request a neeting or to | odge objection to the
Gonpany' s wage proposal during the period between April 18 and
June 1 estops it fromnow contending that Respondent failed or re
fused to bargain during this period. 41/

A t hough voi ci ng di sagreenent wth Respondent's nachi ne
sorter rate, the Uhion made no sorter rate proposal at the June 1
neeting or at any other tine during the course of negotiations.
Respondent' s conduct during the period fromJune 1 to the nutually
arrived at conclusion of negotiations on a single enpl oyer basis
has been recited above and found not to support the concl usi on
that Respondent engaged i n surface bargai ni ng.

e aspect of Respondent's conduct vis-a-vis nachi ne
sorters nerits special attention. The conplaint alleges a unil a-
teral change in working conditions in that the work hours of har-
vest enpl oyees were altered w thout reaching agreement or im
passe. 42/ The facts are undi sputed. Francis Mirphy testified
there was a change in starting tine wth the advent of the nachi ne
harvester as well as an extension of the work day. Neither change
was di scussed wth the UFWbefore effectuation. dearly hours of
enpl oynent is a nandatory subj ect of bargai ning and a change in
hours wi thout notice to the Lhion is a per se violation of 81153
(e) unl ess Respondent's failure to notify and to bargain is ex-
cused by the Uhion's conduct,

As noted above, Respondent contends the Union waived its right to
i npact-bargain. Wen applied to the tine frame after the UFWs request to
bargain, this defense is unavailing. Wile the Union cannot successfully
contend Respondent violated the statute during the period between recei pt of
noti ce of nechanization and its denand for bargaining, it does not follow that
the Uhion is forever foreclosed frombargai ning. Respondent, upon receipt of
a request to effects-bargain as nmani fested by the UFWs request for
information, had an obligation to do so. Thus, waiver is not a defense to
uni |l ateral changes in work hours nmade after a bargai ning demand was recei ved.

Respondent next argues that the UFWbargai ned in bad faith on the
nechani zati on 1ssue, thereby excusing it fromthe injunction agai nst changi ng
hours without notice. There is nerit in this contention. Viewng the entire
course of the UPWs conduct with respect to nechani zation, a concl usion that
it failed to bargain in good faith is warranted. The tine gap between
notification of the intended nechani zation and its demand for bargai ni ng; 43/
its repeated refusals to submt proposals, even wth

41/ A tizens National Bank, 245 NLRB No. 47( );
Roman Catholic D ocese, 238 NLRB No. 177 ( ) ; see al so cases
cited at Footnote 36, Page 26.
42/ Par agraph 14 (d).

43/ Masaji Eto, 6 ALRB No. 20 (1980).
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respect to a wage rate: 44/ the delays in negotiations caused by its repeated
requests for information, no reason having been offered as to why nost of the
i nformation requested coul d not have been sought in the initial request; the
outright rejection of Respondent's proposal wthout any attenpt to mnimze
the difference; 45/ the filing of unfair |abor practices rather than engagi ng
in negotiations; the ultinate naki ng of a proposal which coul d have been
forthcomng absent receipt of answers to its infornmation requests; its failure
to agree to Respondent's proposal for nmarathon negotiations; and finally the
wthdrawal of its tentative agreenent on the Meyer nechani zation | anguage wth
the candid admssion that nechani zati on had not been anticipated at the tine
agreenent was reached, are all circunstances supporting a concl usion that the
UFWwas engaged in surface bargai ning on the i ssue of nechani zation. Faced
wth the Lhion's conduct which evidenced no desire to reach agreenent on the
effects of mechani zation, it was not unreasonabl e for Respondent to effect the
change fromhand harvest to nachi ne harvest and to nake changes in work hours
necessary to effective use of the harvesting nachi ne.

The statute requires the bargaining representative as well as the
enpl oyer to engage i n neani ngful bargaining wth the object of reaching
agreenent . 46/ The totality of the UAWs conduct as nmanifested in the
ci rcunst ances recited above warrants the conclusion that it failed to bargain
in good faith by engaging in surface bargaining regarding the effects of
nechani zati on, thereby providi ng Respondent with a defense to the all egation
it violated 81153(e) by naking a unilateral change in hours,

C Mechani zation As Miolative O 8§1153(c)

The conpl aint all eges that Respondent nechani zed its harvest
operation in order to punish its enpl oyees for their support of the UFWand to
di scourage further support of the Union and that such conduct viol ates
§81153(c) and (a). 47/

As noted by the General (ounsel, Textile VWrkers v. Darlington
Manufacturing Go, , 380 U S 263 (1965) , stands for the proposition that a
partial business closure notivated by enpl oyer ani nus toward the uni on
viol ates 88(a)(3) of the NLRA 48/

_ _The General Counsel correctly argues that the Darlington rational e
IS appropriate in dealing wth nechani zati on

44/ As-H Ne Farns, 6 ALRB Nb. 9 (1980) ; Mntebel | o Rose/ Munt
Arbor Nurseries, 5 ALRB No, 64 (1979),

45/ As-H Ne Farns, supra.

46/ Labor Code §1155, 2(a).
47/ Par agraph 14 (b).

48/ Section 1153(c) is the ALRA counterpart of 8§8(a}(3).
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I ssues; however, there is not substantial evidence on the record as a whol e
that mechani zation was discrimnatorily notivated. Mirphy testified credibly
that CPMs per ton harvest cost was $35.00 in 1977 and $17.50 in 1978. He al so
testified that CPMs reason for nechani zation was to effect a cost reduction
and that |lower costs would be effected through a reduction in direct |abor
costs.

The General Gounsel asserts: "The Conpany's actions in August,
1978, were inherently destructive of enpl oyee rights."49/ Uhless one is to say
that nechani zation is proscribed by the statute, it is not sufficient to
establish a violation of 81153(c) to show a strong adverse effect upon
enpl oyees in the work force resulted fromRespondent's mechani zation. |f the
enpl oyer has a right to nechani ze, subject to the structures of 81153(e) ,
that right exists irrespective of its Inpact upon 81152 rights if the
decision is notivated by other than discrimnatory reasons.

The "inherently destructive" |language had its genesis in NL. RB.
y. Grdeat Dane Trailers, Inc., 388 US 26, 34 (1967), wherein the court
st at ed:

[I]f it can reasonably be concluded that the
enpl oyer's di scrimnatory conduct was "in-
herently destructive" of inportant enpl oyee
rights, no proof of anti-union notivation is
needed and the Board can find an unfair

| abor practice even if the enpl oyer intro-
duces evi dence that the conduct was noti -
vated by busi ness consi derations. [Enphasis
added. |

In Geat Dane the discrimnatory conduct consisted of paying accrued benefits
to one group of enpl oyees and denyi ng themto anot her group distingui shabl e
only by thelir participation in protected concerted activity. No conparabl e
discrimnatory act has been proved herein; certainly nechanization per se is
not a discrimnatory act. Until the act of nechanization's proved a dis-
crimnatory act by establishing its illicit notivation, the "inherently
destructive" analysis of Geat Dane does not cone into play and anti-Uhi on
hostility or aninmus nust be proved. Wil e Respondent has on previ ous occasi ons
been held in violation of the Act,50/ the earlier violations provide only
Eackgrogri}j and cannot be the" basis for finding an unfair |abor practice
erein.

Oh this record there is not substantial evi dence of a

discrimnatory noti ve for Respondent's nechani zation; therefore

49/ Post-hearing Brief of General Counsel, at p. 37.

50/Q P. Murphy & Sons, 4 ALRB No. 62 (1978); Q P. Mirphy & Sons,
4 ALRB No. 106 (1978); and Q P. Murphy & Sons, 5 ALRB No. 63 (1979) .

51/As-H Ne Farns, Inc., supra.
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Par agraph 14(b) of the conpl aint nust be di sm ssed.

For all the foregoi ng reasons, the General (ounsel has failed to
prove Respondent viol ated §381153(c) and (e) of the Act. Since any §1153(a)
violation would, in the instant case, derive froma (c) or (e) violation, it
fol lows that there was no viol ation of 81153(a).

D Refusal To Rehire Menbers G0 The Chavez Famly

Paragraph 11 of the conplaint in 79- @& 330-SAL, consolidated for
hearing, alleges Respondent refused to hire the Chavez famly on or about
August 5, 1979, because of Lhion activity in violation of §81153(a) and (c).

The Chavez famly, including their father who is not a
naned di scrimnatee, were participants in the 1977 strike agai nst
Respondent. Qne or nore of themwas observed pi cketing by an GPM
supervi sor. Wen the strike was settled, the famly was recal | ed
to finish out the two or three days renai ning of the harvest.
Wth the exception of the father, no famly nenber thereafter en
gaged in Whion or protected concerted activity, Ghavez, &.,
served on the UPWnegoti ating coomttee in 1977 and attended nost
bar gai ni n;] sessions held in 1978. He was not named as a discrim-
natee. 52 -

The discrimnatees were recalled in 1978 and were
offered and refused work. They wanted to work as pi ece-rate hand- pi ckers, but
such work was not avail abl e. Aside fromnot wanting nachi ne work, their father
told themthey would not lose their seniority as hand pi ckers if they declined
nmachi ne sorter work. CPMrepresentatives nmade such a representation at a 1978
bar gai ni ng sessi on.

Prior to the commencenent of the 1979 season, (PMreverted to its
original policy; all workers who had failed to report for work when called in
1978 lost their seniority as did workers who failed to finish the 1978 season.
The famly was not called back in 1979 and when they sought to file
applications were told that no workers were needed. Their phone nunber was
taken, and they were told they would be called if needed. None of the famly
wor ked in 1979,

A though the show ng is not substantial, it seens probabl e that
Respondent was aware of the alleged discrimnatees' picketing activity during
the period of the 1977 strike; however, it does not appear that nuch
significance, if any, was attached thereto; the Chavezes were call ed back to
work when the strike was finished, and so far as the record shows, their
recall was carried out in a nondiscrimnatory manner. Smlarly their 1977
Lhion activities had no inpact upon their seniority in 1978 for they

52/ This omssion is likely related to the fact that he was arrested
for trespass occurring during the course of the 1977 strike.
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appear properly to have been recalled at the start of the season. The nere
fact of Enpl oyer know edge of their 1977 Uhion activities is insufficient to
establ i sh the General (ounsel 's case; sone discrimnatory notive for not
hiring themin 1979 nust be proved.

The General Gounsel argues that Respondent discrinmnated agai nst
the Chavezes by termnating their seniority for failing to report when call ed
in 1978. Even if one assunes that a reason for their failing to report was
Mirphy' s representation that people declining to work as nachine sorters woul d
not lose their seniority, it does not followthat the refusal to rehire them
was a discrimnatory act. They were not discrimnated agai nst vis-a-vis
ot her workers who failed to report in 1978 or who failed to finish the 1978
season. Al persons in those categories were deprived of their seniority. The
record does not reveal when CPMnade its decision to followits original
practice and the reversion is not | charged as a violation of the Act. There
I's no evidence of a distinction, based upon Uhion activity, between the Chavez
famly and | others who failed to report for work in 1978.

The General Gounsel next argues that the Chavezes were
discrimnatorily denied the right to file applications when they sought work
in 1979. It is asserted, correctly, that the Act requires "an enpl oyer nust
consi der a request for enployment in a lawful, nondi scri mnatory nanner."53/
However, the General Gounsel has failed to prove by substantial evidence on
the record "as a | whole that Respondent's failure to accept applications was
adiscrimnatory act. CPMs policy regarding applications was not clearly
establ i shed, but it appears when workers were needed seniority workers were
call ed and when they reported they were given j applications to conplete.
agivenday if the required nunber of seniority workers failed to report,
Respondent hired of f the street fromanong persons not havi ng previously
submtted applications or, alternatively, called non-seniority persons havi ng
applications on file. Wth respect to such persons, it appears that GPM had no
fixed policy regarding accepting applications at tines other than the day the
applicant was to go to work. |t appears that the 56 non-seniority enpl oyees
hired between July 25 and August 4 all conpl eted their applications the day
they went to work and, thus, were not hired fromapplications on file.

There is no evidence that the all eged di scri mnat ees
were at the CPMshed seeki ng work on any day when non-seniority
workers were hired. Nor is there any evidence that the inability
of the Chavezes to obtain application forns was inconsistent wth
(PM's policy regarding procuring such forns fromnon-seniority
persons, Abatti does not require that every person seeking an
appl i cation bl ank nust be given one; rather, the requirement is
that a person not be denied one for a reason interdicted by the
Act. The General Counsel has failed to adduce evi dence proving
such was the case here.

53/ Abatti Farns, Inc., 5 ALRB No. 34 (1979), Sip Qi nion,
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Wil e the General Counsel correctly notes that he need not
establish the availability of hand-picking jobs at the tine the Chavezes
sought work, citing Abatti, supra, It is necessary that he prove that their
request for enpl oynent was handled in a discrimnatory nmanner.

Here, as in the case invol ving nechani zati on, the General Counsel
seeks to rely on Geat Dane Trailers, supra, and contends that CPMs swtch of
position on | oss of seniority was "inherently destructive" of inportant
enpl oyee rights under the Act, The argunent msses the point of Geat Dane,
Here, it does not appear that the only persons deprived of seniority for
failing to report for work in 1978 were Union adherents. Thus, unlike Q eat
Dane, there is no evidence that a distinction was drawn anong those failing to
report in 1978 on the basis of their Uhion activity. In Geat Dane it was the
fact that the enpl oyer treated enpl oyees differently with respect to accrued
vacat i on based upon their participation in protected concerted activity. There
is no evidence of such disparate treatnent herein.

Finally, the General (ounsel asserts that the activities
of Trinidad Chavez, ., and the Respondent's awareness t hereof,
Is circunstantial evidence that his famly nenbers were discrim-
nat ed agai nst when they sought work in 1979.54/ This argunent is
unper suasi ve, Trinidad was nore active during 1977 when he
attended all the negotiation neetings. This greater degree of ac-
tivity was not reflected in any disparate treatrment of his famly
at the outset of the 1978 season. Hs participation in negotia-
tions during 1978 was sporadic, U-Wchief negotiator S eeg was
sure he attended sone neetings but did not recall how rmany. It
woul d be specul ative indeed to infer that but for his attendance
at negotiation neetings the nenbers of his famly woul d not have
| ost seniority or alternatively have been hired 1n 1979 despite
their loss of seniority.

Finally, since the General (ounsel has failed to establish a
discrimnatory nmotive for the failure to hire the Chavez famly in 1979, the
Enpl oyer' s burden of establishing a | egitinate business reason for their
treat nent does not arise. 55

_ - Having concl uded that the General Counsel has failed to prove a
prima facie case that Respondent viol ated 881153(c) and (a) of the Act, the
conplaint in Case No, 79-CE 330-SAL nust be di sm ssed,

GROER

o Pursuant to 8 Gal, Admn. Code 820263, Respondent's notion to
dismss the conplaints in their entirety is granted,

_ 54/ Respondent's reversion to a policy of termnating seniority
rights for failure to report for work is not charged as a violation of
the Act,

55/NL.RB v. Geat Dane Trailers, Inc., supra.
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The conplaint in Case No. 79-CE330-SAL is so dismssed. The conplaint in Case
Nos. 78-CE113-M 78-CE113-1-Mand 78-CE 113-2-Mis so di sm ssed.

Dat ed: Septenber 15, 1980

Robert Leprohn
Adm ni strative Law O ficer
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